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Directors’ Report
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Company’s
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of cornstarch, lysine,
starch-based sweetener, modified starch and ancillary corn-based and corn-refined
products. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 15 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s revenue is derived from two business segments, namely (i) upstream
products and (i) fermented and downstream products, the production activities of
which are carried out in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year is set out in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 18. The Environmental and Sustainability
Report set out on pages 19 to 30 provides a review of the Group’s environmental
policies, compliance details and key relationships with the major stakeholders
(including its employees, customers and suppliers). The Risk Review Report set
out on pages 31 to 34 provides a comprehensive review of principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group.

The Group is committed to complying with all environmental policies and other
relevant laws and regulations related to its business operating environment. In
addition, the Group also has an internal laboratory to monitor the quality of our
products perpetually in order to ensure that our products comply with national
standards, including food safety standards.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in notes 25 and 32 to the audited consolidated financial statements.
The related party transactions as set out in notes 25 and 32 to the audited
consolidated financial statements constituted fully exempt connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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DIVIDENDS

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKO0.69 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 15 June 2023. The proposed
final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(“AGM”), is expected to be paid on or about 19 July 2023 in cash.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman)

Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Xianggang

Mr. Yu Yingquan

Independent non-executive Directors:
Professor Hua Qiang

Mr. Sun Mingdao

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken

Mr. Gao Shijun, Mr. Yu Yingquan and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM. Mr. Yue has served
the Company as an independent non-executive Director for more than 9 years, his
re-election and further appointment as an independent non-executive Director will be
subject to a separate resolution to be considered and, if thought fit, approved by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.

None of the above Directors proposed for re-election has entered into any service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from all of the independent non-executive Directors,
namely Professor Hua Qiang, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken, an annual
confirmation of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all of them are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT
OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Group was a party and in which a Director or his connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the financial year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to Article 201 of the articles of association (the “Articles”) of the Company,
the Directors and other officers of the Company shall be indemnified out of the
Company’s assets from and against all losses and liabilities which they may incur or
sustain in the execution of their duties, excluding any losses and liabilities that may
arise from fraud and dishonesty. The above indemnity provision was in force during
the course of the year and remained in force as of the date of this annual report. In
addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance for the purpose of indemnifying for losses in respect of relevant legal
actions against the Directors and other officers of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(A) Long positions in shares of the Company

Nature of interest

EmitE

Name of Director

BEEis

Mr. Tian Qixiang Interest in a controlled corporation

BEELE TEREEED
Notes:
(1) The interest in these shares was held by Merry Boom Group Limited (“Merry

Boom”). Merry Boom is owned as to approximately 54.58% by Mr. Tian
Qixiang. Mr. Tian was deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Merry
Boom under the SFO.
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(B) Long positions in shares of the associated corporations

Name of associated

corporation Name of Director Nature of interest
TRk E B 1R EEgth EEtE
Merry Boom Mr. Tian Qixiang Beneficial owner
= AERLE BERBEAA
Mr. Gao Shijun Beneficial owner
BHELE BaEAA
Mr. Yu Yingguan Beneficial owner
FHEREE BERBEEA
Shouguang Golden Corn Mr. Gao Shijun Beneficial owner
Biotechnology Limited* BEELE BHREAA

(“Golden Corn Biotech”)
SNEEREMRRERLAF

(M EREMBR) Mr. Yu Yingquan Beneficial owner
FHRRAE ERBEEA
Mr. Liu Xianggang Beneficial owner
ARBIKE ETEBA
Notes:
(1) Golden Corn Biotech was an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the

Company. The amount of paid-up registered capital of Golden Corn Biotech
was RMB200,000,000. The number of shares was not specified in the

constitutional document.

2) Shouguang Chengyu Investment Co., Ltd* (“Chengyu”) was one of the
shareholders of Golden Corn Biotech. Mr. Gao Shijun held 1,500,000 shares in
Chengyu through Shouguang Junze Technology Service Co., Ltd.* (“Junze”).
The entire registered capital of Junze was wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.

Gao Shijun.

3) Chengyu was one of the shareholders of Golden Corn Biotech. Mr. Yu
Yingquan held 400,000 shares in Chengyu through Shouguang Starsea
Trading Co., Ltd* (“Starsea”). The entire registered capital of Starsea was

wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yu Yingquan.

(4) Shouguang Shengyu Investment Co., Ltd* (“Shengyu”) was one of the
shareholders of Golden Corn Biotech. Mr. Liu Xianggang held 375,000 shares
in Shengyu through Shouguang Xiangyin Trading Co., Ltd (“Xiangyin”). The
entire registered capital of Xiangyin was wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.

Liu Xianggang.

* English transliteration for identification only.

(B)
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Number of shares

Percentage of
interest in
associated
corporation

ROUE SEBZREZE DL

131 54.58%
60 25.00%
1 0.42%
- 0.75%
(notes 1,2)
(MzE1+2)
- 0.20%
(notes 1,3)
(FffzE13)
- 0.19%
(notes 1,4)
(MsE1~4)

%IHE%M&%ZI&’ATF‘&&?E%
B BAB R KEYRENE
WrEMmEARA AR 200,000,000
Too BME XM S E R B
E o

]|
—~
=

o b A W Bt
e i AN

RERBEEREVHEHRRZ
— FHRREBBFINERKS
HEARRAR ERABE) KA
400,000 R ERD - BERABHZ
MAMEABHFHRLELER D
WA

FEHREEREROBARAS (M2
F) ASEREVRRNREZ
— A RMAELERBBINRINK
BEREAERE (RN FA
375,000 REK M - RENEY 2 HF
HMERAZRBEER AR SR

Ho

B CEER 5



Directors’ Report
EEEREE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company nor their respective associates had any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 19
May 2017. The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

6

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to eligible persons as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group and to enable the Group to attract, recruit and retain senior
management, key employees and human resources that are valuable or
potentially valuable to the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are (a) any employee
(whether full-time or part-time including any executive director but excluding
any non-executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which any member of the Group holds an
equity interest; (b) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity; (c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which may
be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
number of issued Shares from time to time. The total number of the Shares
which may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all options (excluding,
for this purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group)
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
Shares as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.
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4. The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon

the exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued Share for the time being (“Individual Limit”). Any
further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant must be separately
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting with such
grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.

5. Any grant of options under the Share Option Scheme to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their respective
associates must be approved by independent non-executive directors of the
Company (excluding independent non-executive director of the Company
who or whose associates is the proposed grantee of the options). In addition,
any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or any of their respective associates, in
excess of 0.1% of the issued Shares at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval of the Company in a general meeting.

6. The vesting period of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is determined by the directors of the Company, which period may
commence from the date of the offer for the grant of options is made, but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of the offer for the
grant of the option or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, whichever
is earlier, subject to the provisions for early termination as stated in the Share
Option Scheme.

7. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within 28
days from the date of the offer for the grant with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1.00 from the grantee.

8. The exercise price of the share option is determined by the Board but shall
not be less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (c) the nominal value of the Shares.

9. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective till 18 May 2027.

The Company have not granted any share options under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption.
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INTERESTS OF THE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors, the following person,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, has an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO; or as otherwise
being notified to the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to
be interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Name Capacity
18 13
Merry Boom Beneficial owner (note 1)
15 BmEB A (1)
Notes:
(1) These shares were held by Merry Boom. Merry Boom is owned as to approximately

54.58% by Mr. Tian Qixiang, an executive Director and Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Tian is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Merry Boom under the SFO
as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests”
above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, there were no any other persons
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement which
enables the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to its existing shareholders.

8 CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED PR ZEREREAE

FERRKREMATHER

RIEBEZZFE+ZB=+—H BEEMRF XU
TAL EERAEARBEBETHAERIN REA
B M NAERRG P EA TS RNIRIEE S RS
&G 5533616 AN A B BIEEN S LMANERE
KA WRARATSRHIU L2 BEITRATER
FWRAEEBARITNEARABN B ZREEE

o -

Percentage of

Number of issued share
shares capital
HERITRE

K& E B
3,705,385,194 61.81%

MI5E -

™ IEHERMDANREFA - REHARTNTE
ERTFEHEFTEEAX54.58%Em 1R
BREFRBER W EXTERTRERIT
BAEREm) —RATIRE  BERERRS
RIeBEFAENMRAERD R ER -

R EXFRBES R -F A= +—
B BEEARMAL EERFADEBFTHA
BI5N RAABRA REMBRN T RE AR S
PRI S R IR GBI A A D FENE
S B R A -

BARMDEEFHRH

M SRR IR B FE AR HE AT BISN ) R T IR
FARRHEANBADNERSREMTSEE
EEAK QBN EMEABEORD A MBS
TR o

BE - LENBEIXATH LHES
RBEE-S-_&#+-A=+—-HLEE HE
BE HEABOAAR L LHES.
BEARERE

ERMANNASHE AN EHIBREQTE
REEHEERRARREETRONVELHBER
153



Directors’ Report
EEERES

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s turnover and purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases of the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float
of not less than 25% of the Company’s total issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Tian Qixiang
Chairman
Shouguang, The People’s Republic of China

22 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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INDUSTRY REVIEW AND COMPANY DEVELOPMENT
Overview

The year 2022 was a tumultuous year. Each of us, most of the time, was affected by
the mitigation measures for minimising the outbreak of COVID-19 (the “Outbreak”).
During the year, lockdown measures imposed by the authorities affected all walks of
life and logistics.

The Group’s operation during the first and second half of 2022 was not materially
affected by the Outbreak. Thank you for the contribution of our staff, the value chain
from corn kernel procurement and manufacturing to delivery had still run round the
clock during such a hard time.

During the year under review, the Group still benefited from the strong demand
resulting from the recovery of demand for animal feeds and the breeding markets.
The sales performance of corn gluten meal and corn fibre as well as lysine was
satisfactory. It was because these products were used for the production of animal
feeds which were consumables and directly related to the subsequent food-
processing industry for people. It was not surprising that people had to stockpile food
during the lockdown period.

In December 2022, China took decisive steps to lift its Zero-COVID policy and
embark on a path of economic recovery. It is difficult to predict the market
performance after the lifting of COVID-19 restrictions. We believe that both market
demand and market supply will be released in the absence of lockdown measures. A
new equilibrium point may be good or bad for manufacturers, yet such changes will
inevitably bring each market player to a more competitive environment. Therefore, we
have a cautious view of our business performance in 2023.

So far, the Group has spent many resources in upgrading our production facilities
which were of low emission and high performance, which has led to effective
reduction in our costs. In addition to the cost competition, we expanded our product
varieties to the market. The lactic acid trial production line was completed in May
2022 and moved to its normal production stage as planned in December 2022. The
production capacity of lactic acid was 20,000 tonnes per annum.
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Business Development

The Group has strong commitment to developing different applications of corn-
derived products. In 2023, we will increase the annual production capacity of our
lysine products from 300,000 tonnes to 500,000 tonnes. This target is expected to
be achieved by the end of 2023. The advantages of such expansion are that it can
reduce our cost of production and refine lysine product categories we offer. It can
further consolidate our customer base and we will become a one-stop shop offering
lysine products with different purity grades.

The Group will also set up lactide and polylactide trial production lines with an annual
production capacity of 5,000 tonnes respectively. This is a big step forward from a
sketch to an experimental production line. It is expected this project will be completed
by the end of 2023.

[t has been more than two years since the formation of the joint venture company,
Shouguang Juneng Musashino Biotechnology Co., Ltd., with our joint venture partner,
Musashino Chemical Laboratory, Ltd (the “JV Partner”). We will work closely with the
local government on the selection of an appropriate production site in the first half of
2023. We, together with the JV Partner, aim to set up lactate production facilities with
a production capacity of 20,000 tonnes per annum by the end of 2024.

The Group intends to use its internal resources to finance the three plans as
mentioned above.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Upstream products

The upstream products represent cornstarch and its by-products, including corn
gluten meal, corn germ, corn fibre and corn slurry. Because of the depressed
economic activities in the second half of 2022, the demand for cornstarch, as a base
material for many industries, was inevitably affected. Conversely, the animal feeds and
breeding sectors remained satisfactory during the year 2022. Prices of corn germ
and corn germ meal were closely related to that of soybean oil and soybean meal.
The increase in international soybean prices supported not only the prices of soybean
by-products but also that of corn derivative products, which also partly offset the
negative impact resulting from the decrease in demand for cornstarch.

Fermented and downstream products

Lysine could be used for the production of animal feeds. There were many factors
affecting the sales performance of lysine. First, the reduction in the global supply
of lysine products had a positive impact. Second, the animal feeds and breeding
markets were still satisfactory. Third, the Group obtained many sales orders and
locked the selling prices when the market sentiment was still positive. Therefore,
the sales performance of lysine remained was still satisfactory during the year under
review.
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The sales performance of starch-based sweetener was still affected by the problem
of excessive production capacity problem in China. During the year under review, the
Group spent much effort expanding our market share in this regard.

The sales performance of modified starch was continued to be affected by the city’s
sewage reduction measures. Therefore, the Group recorded a significant decrease in
the sales volume of modified starch.

During the year under review, we spent more resources on the development of the
biobased material market. As the Group’s lactic acid production facilities moved from
trial-run to full-scale operation, the Group’s production volume and sales volume of
lactic acid increased at the end of 2022.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Overview

During the year under review, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB11,948,852,000 (2021: RMB11,639,315,000). Gross profit of the Group
increased substantially by 25.0% to approximately RMB1,190,475,000 (2021:
RMB952,211,000).

Profit after taxation increased substantially to RMB495,432,000 (2021:
RMB402,830,000). Basic earnings per share of the Company was RMBO0.0587 per
share based on the weight average number of 5,994,132,000 ordinary shares (2021:
RMBO0.0577 per share based on the weight average number of 5,994,132,000
ordinary shares).

Segment Performance

Upstream products

Revenue WA
Gross profit EF
Gross profit margin EF=

BN ERBINZENELEBTBER
FEBNROBEEEMIERDIBET SN

BEHERMAOEERRBDHARI BT RSHEEY
LRI AEBBRBEIERNHBEETH-

REBEEER BfIRERELERNENEM
KBHiZERE AR AEENABEERHENAE
CREINEEEE R_E__E5KHEEN
IEEEE RIS E A FTIgM -

MBRR
B EE

REBEEER AEEHBEKANAR
#11,948,852,000c (ZE_—F : AR
11,639,315,0007t)  ANEBWEF] KR LA
25.0% =4 AR #1,190,475,00077 (T - —4F :
AR #952,211,0007T) ©

PriR B AR LA E AR 15495,432,0007T (=
T AR402,830,0007T) ° RIFMEF

fi% #(5,994,132,000/ HiBR st H > KRB R

HABAASRARK0.0587T (CTE_—F R
T P8 805,994,132,0008 Z @Rt E A S
& AR #0.05777T) °
DEPRIR
EFEmR
2022 2021
—E-C B —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AE®ETF T
8,705,998 8,576,482
441,715 496,351
5.1% 5.8%

During the year under review, revenue of upstream products increased slightly by
1.5% to RMB8,705,998,000 (2021: RMB8,576,482,000). The gross profit margin of
this business segment decreased by 0.7 percentage point to 5.1%. The performance
of this business segment was mainly affected by the stagnant demand for cornstarch
in the second half of 2022 on one hand and the increased utility expenses on the
other hand. The average selling price of cornstarch was about RMB2,872 (2021:
RMB2,988) per tonne. The sales volume of cornstarch was approximately 1,953,563
tonnes (2021: 1,915,794 tonnes).
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Fermented and downstream products BER FFER
2022 2021
—E-C =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AREF T

Revenue A

— Lysine —Bak 2,424,684 2,224,230
— Starch-based sweetener — D 541,364 519,544
— Modified starch — R 196,006 267,463
— Others —HAth 80,800 51,596
Total 4Bt 3,242,854 3,062,833
Gross profit EF 748,760 455,860
Gross profit margin EFIE 23.1% 14.9%

Revenue of fermented and downstream products increased to RMB3,242,854,000
(2021: RMB3,062,833,000).

Revenue of lysine increased from approximately RMB2,224,230,000 to
RMB2,424,684,000. The overall sales volume of lysine products was about 314,179
tonnes (2021: 320,638 tonnes). The slight decrease in sales volume was affected by
the logistics problem in the fourth quarter of 2022. The average selling price of lysine
products was about RMB7,718 (2021: RMB6,937) per tonne.

Revenue of starch-based sweetener was approximately RMB541,364,000 (2021:
RMB519,544,000). The average selling price and sales volume of starch-based
sweetener was about RMB2,277 (2021: RMB2,650) per tonne and 237,718 tonnes
(2021: 196,049 tonnes) respectively. During the year under review, liquid starch-
based sweetener became our major product, which represented about 72.9% (2021:
69.4%) of the Group’s sales volume. As the average selling price of liquid starch-
based sweetener was lower than that of crystallised starch-based sweetener, the
overall average selling price of starch-based sweetener decreased. However, such
change did not compromise our profitability as the process of crystallisation is not
required in the production of liquid starch-based sweetener and less energy was
consumed in the course of its production, which led to lower cost of production.

Revenue of modified starch was RMB196,006,000 (2021: RMB267,463,000). The
decrease in revenue of modified starch was mainly attributable to the reduction of
production output resulting from the sewage reduction measures.

Revenue of other fermented products increased substantially by 56.6% to
approximately RMB80,800,000 (2021: RMB51,596,000). From trial run to normal
operation, the Group increased our biobased material output gradually during the
year under review.
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Cost of sales and gross profit

During the year under review, the total cost of sales increased to
RMB10,758,377,000 (2021: RMB10,687,104,000). The average corn kernel cost
of the Group for the year 2022 was stable as compared with the last year (2022:
RMB2,550 per tonne and 2021: RMB2,542 per tonne). The cost of electricity and
steam increased substantially because of the full year effect on unit price adjustment
in the fourth quarter of 2021. The percentage of these utility expenses increased to
7.9% (2021: 5.5%) of the total cost of sales during the year under review.

The Group strengthened cost control and had implemented other measures to
maintain our profitability. For example, we used more low-emission and high-
performance equipment. We promoted the use of liquid starch-based sweetener, and
adjusted our product combinations and production schedules to achieve economies
of scale. Gross profit of the Group increased to RMB1,190,475,000 (2021:
RMB952,211,000).

The Group did not enter into any forward/futures contract to hedge the price
fluctuation of corn kernel during the year under review. The Group makes purchases
from the spot market in accordance with its production schedule.

Review of Other Operations
Distribution and administrative expenses

Distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December 2022 increased to
RMB171,044,000 (2021: RMB164,934,000). The Group controlled the delivery cost
by promoting the use of bulk cargo delivery and encouraging customers to pick up
their goods from our warehouse directly.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 mainly ®BEZZ-__Fr-_Z-_—F+A=+—0H0It

comprised of the following: FENDHERFEQETIEIE:
2022 2021
B T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Delivery and logistics RS K 141,651 138,173
Marketing expenses MIZEERS 14,989 14,450
Staff costs BT WA 8,335 7,173
Others Hth 6,069 5,138
171,044 164,934

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2022 increased to ®EZZ__HF+__A=+—HIEFENTHE
RMB207,835,000 (2021: RMB192,013,000). The increase was mainly attributable  FIBHIIZE AR 207,835,000 (ZEZ—F : A
to (i) an increase in staff costs and government levies, (i) an additional repairing cost ~ E%192,013,0007T) °sZ & M5 EEZHKHE MK
for the external insulation walls of our staff accommodation, and (iii) partly offset by a AN & BN EIG N (i) B T EFREIMEIEEIH
decrease in depreciation and amortisation expenses. Administrative expenses for the — 4B B R » K(iil) 86 0 4% 37 & K 8 8 & s /D P ik
year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 mainly comprised of the following: B BE_ S-SR E_—FE+-A=1+—
HIEFENTHERTEGETIISIE !

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBEF T

Staff costs BT 108,655 101,312
Depreciation and amortisation expenses TEREHER 32,147 37,371
Government levies BFHE 31,094 22,657
Others Hth 35,939 30,673
207,835 192,013

Research expenses HEEH

Research expenses mainly consisted of material used and depreciation and A& A F E G 1EPT M LA A DR 1785 K # 8
amortisation costs. The Group’s research projects included feasibility study and B AEBEWIFEIER G FEHE R AT HEH
development of new products, change of production methods or explore new FHKEE - BEEEFAFMAEMEETE AL
production techniques. The Group’s research expenses increased substantially from — EBIHF3EE A B A R #199,648,0007t A 181G I E
RMB199,648,000 to RMB324,108,000. A ER#324,108,0007T °
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Other net income

The other net income increased to RMB119,838,000 (2021: RMB114,923,000). The
major items of other net income are set out below:

HtF WA

HMFWAEMNE AR 119,838,000t (Z =
——%  AR#114,923,0007T) ° EMIBEU AR T
ZIEEHEINWT :

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AR®F T
Amortisation of government grants AT 4/ B B 2 84 81,766 62,925
Gain on sales of scrap materials THERER Z W= 21,841 17,317
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEME BEREBHW G 9,403 1,075
Written off of property, plant and equipment W BB M (208) (3,091)
Sewage treatment TSKEEE 2,875 1,224
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) ERUE (E518) F48 1,538 (1,958)
Government grants (one-off) B (—R %) 1,185 36,496
Gain on futures RSyl 601 333
Others Hih 837 602
119,838 114,923

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES ANE R R EHMEUER

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had about 2,364 full time staff (2021: 2,326)
in the PRC and Hong Kong. Total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, of
the Group were approximately RMB266,179,000 (2021: RMB229,470,000). The
Group considers the experience, responsibility, and performance of the Directors and
employees of the Group when determining their respective remuneration packages.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) to
enable the Group to grant options to eligible persons as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group as well as to attract, recruit and retain senior management,
key employees and human resources that are valuable or potentially valuable to the
Group.

In addition, a remuneration committee is delegated by the Board to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation
payable to the Directors and senior management.

As at 31 December 2022, no share options have been granted under the Share
Option Scheme.
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative approach for cash management and investment on
uncommitted funds. The primary purpose of our financial management and treasury
policy is to ensure possessing of sufficient cash and available banking facilities to
meet its commitment on one hand and to obtain better return on the other hand. Any
unused fund is not only placed on short-term/fixed deposits with authorised financial
institutions in Hong Kong and/or the PRC, but also short-term capital-and-reward
guaranteed financial instruments.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Directors do not consider the exposure to foreign exchange risk being significant
to the Group’s operation as the Group operated mainly in the PRC and most of the
Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities were denominated in Renminbi. Foreign
currencies were however received from export sales. Such proceeds were subject
to foreign exchange risk before converting into Renminbi. The foreign currencies
received from export sales were converted into Renminbi upon receipt from overseas
customers. The Group manages foreign exchange risk by monitoring the exchange
rates closely instead of entering into any foreign exchange hedging arrangement.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The key financial performance indicators of the Group for the two years ended 31
December are set out below:

MBERREHHR

AEEHTEEEARNESTRKNAERTHREE
BRERARE RAMBEEREFTRRNEE
BENARAFAEHRELITHARTEERN
HKEE > URBSEENDOR - ERHRBANE
EHREERNEB R RN ENRE S REEE
K2HEHATERON I e A ERE B A HR R AR UK
HRERMT A

4 BE /= B

ENAERTEETEEEEE MAEB K
ARG EERBERDBDUARBSE REEAS
AEE BT AR BAIMNE R o 24T 0 tHO8H
BRI BB RINE - BRFMSMER RS
AR A REZINE R [ ot 8 & WA 5 8
REEiEREEE AR ARE AEBELE
METSShER 2 B n N EESNE R R =
EBEYEBEXEERME -

NRBEE -MBERRERRE

FEEHET_B=1T—HILMEFENBEY
BRIIERHIIMT ¢

Units 2022 2021
B - B4
Debtors turnover FEW AR R B days & 11 14
Creditors turnover PETER R B days X 7 7
Inventories turnover FEHE days X 25 24
Current ratio TMENEEE times & 2.8 2.5
Quick ratio REHEEX times 1% 1.9 1.8
Gearing ratio (Note 1) AR (f5E1) % 5.6 2.4
Total shareholder return (Note 2) MRS ERBIRE (MfEE2) % 9.4 41.7
Notes: (=
1) Gearing ratio is calculated as the borrowings to total assets. 1) AR ER R U R EESE
@) Total shareholder return combines share price appreciation and dividends paid to show  (2) MRROMEBEREARBRSIEMRKRE U

the total return to shareholders.
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The Directors are of the opinion that the working capital available to the Group is
sufficient for its present requirements. As at 31 December 2022, all borrowings of
the Group were short-term borrowings. The aggregated bank borrowings and other
borrowings of approximately RMB262,700,000 were denominated in Renminbi and
were carried interest at fixed rates. The loan from a controlling shareholder of the
Company of RMB23,225,000 was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and was
carrying interest at a floating rate. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
mostly denominated in Renminbi. The increase in borrowings was mainly attributable
to an increase in the working capital requirement.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not pledge any leasehold land and building
to secure banking facilities. As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided a deposit
of RMB207,582,000 and bank acceptance bills of RMB67,230,000 for securing
banking facilities and bills payables.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to approximately RMB128,331,000.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board intends to create long term value for the shareholders of the Company
through maintaining a balance between dividend distribution, adequate cash flow and
reserve to meet its working capital requirement and capturing growth opportunities.
The Board may propose or declare the payment of dividends after taking into account
the current financial performance, the future financial requirements and any other
factors that may deem relevant to the Company. The Board may decide the frequency
of dividend payment and further declare or recommend any special distributions.
Dividends may be declared or paid by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the
Board considers appropriate. The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance
with applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the Cayman Islands and
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association. The Board will review this
dividend policy from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividend will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Environmental and Sustainability Report

IRIE R PSR RS

Basis of preparation

The preparation of this report was conducted mainly with reference to the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix 27
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. We aimed to provide a balanced and comprehensive review of the
environmental and social performance of different areas in our Group with our major
stakeholders in this report. We used priority issue analysis to identify and focus on the
primary needs and issues faced by our stakeholder groups.

This report covered the overall environmental and social performance of all major
subsidiaries of the Group, which are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022, which engage in
the manufacturing and sales activities of cornstarch and other related products in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Disclaimer statement

The performance data set out in this report are not independently audited or verified.
The management endeavours to present complete and meaningful information to
the user of such data, however, we cannot assure the accuracy or completeness
of data in which we collected. The accuracy of the data we produced in this report
may be affected by, inter alia, unit conversion factors, material/quality tolerance, and
difference in material used and method of production. Therefore, we accept no liability
for the accuracy of the information if users of such data suffer any losses or damage.

Board statement

We recognise our corporate social responsibility to society. Consequently, the
Board oversees ESG-related issues as well as the overall environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) management approach.

The Board believes that the Group’s sustainability is highly dependent on the
relationship with its stakeholders. Besides creating value for shareholders of the
Company, we also create value for our stakeholders beyond monetary terms. We
are committed to incorporating ESG mindsets into business operations by balancing
financial performance with how we do business, how we treat our people, how we
live the values in our business relationships and how we care for the environment on
which we rely.
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What we believe

Cornstarch is one of the most versatile and easily workable resources which also
has a wide range of applications in various industries. From the perspective of corn
supply, the promotion of using cornstarch would support the development of local
and village economies by wise-using agricultural lands. From the perspective of
demand of corn kernel, cornstarch is one of the most commonly used components
of tens of thousands of manufactured products nowadays. Its existence can be found
in different formats, such as clothing we wear, the food and beverage served in the
restaurant, and as far as oil exploration. Thus, we maintain a positive outlook on our
business in the long run.

With our strong platform, we are positioned to capture the benefits of an increasing
market share and are well prepared for further sustainable growth. Even though
we are facing the current tough and uncertain global and domestic environment,
our objective remains unchanged, which is to be in a leading position in the corn-
refinery industry in the PRC. To achieve this goal, the Directors and the Board’s
executive management teams are engaged in expanding our Group in various
aspects, including our production capacity of cornstarch and lysine products, our
product pipeline, our marketing force and our market coverage. The Company is also
committed to enhancing our research and development capability.
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Reporting principles
We applied the following principles in the preparation of this report:
Materiality

We identify and assess ESG issues by considering key factors that affect the
operations and continuity of our business from the perspectives of our stakeholders.
We have seven major stakeholder groups which are set out in the section headed
“Our Methodology to this Report” below in this report.

Quantitative

Where applicable, we provided information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, and source of conversion factors used, for
the reporting of emissions/energy consumption disclosed in the respective sections in
this report.

Consistency

We applied consistent methodologies to allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG
data over time.

Our Methodology for this Report

The management team is delegated by the Board to identify, evaluate, prioritise,
manage and mitigate material ESG-related issues that might adversely affect our
business. The Board will discuss and review the Group’s ESG risks and opportunities,
performance, progress, goals and targets regularly with the assistance of the
management team, with reference to the applicable environmental-related targets set
by the local governments and compare our outcomes with these targets.

We conducted a stakeholder review every year to ensure that we can address
material issues related to the Group.

We have seven major stakeholder groups which can participate in or affect our
decision-making process and influence our business outcomes.
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Talents

We recognise that the health and safety of our people come first as they
are key to our long-term success. This is core to us and every aspect of
our business. We believe the achievement of positive workplace relations
is mutually beneficial to the Group and our employees as workplace
efficiency is achieved when labour relationships allow for a culture of
continuous improvement and acceptance of change. Thus, we encourage
communication at all levels. Apart from regular meetings with the
representative of the Group’s labour union, we also obtain opinions from
and provide feedback within our workgroups in order to ensure continual
improvement for the work environment and other staff related matters. To
understand, manage and, where possible, minimise occupational injuries or
illnesses in our business is equally important. We have appropriate controls in
place and provide our people with appropriate training to ensure compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations in relation to employees’ health and
safety. On-the-job training related to individual development is also provided
to our people to enhance skills and capabilities for discharging duties at work.
The purpose of this arrangement lets our staff get familiar with all accidental
situations and minimise the risk of accidents.

Major topics include fire prevention and fire drill, hazardous chemical leaking
drill, electrician, welder and boiler worker safety training, lightning prevention,
dust explosion prevention. We will also update our safety handbook on a
regular basis and provide body check for selected staff with high risk of
occupational disease. Our training and drills are mandatory and their results
will become a part of the staff appraisal record.

At the same time, we strive to cultivate sustainable employment practices
and labour standards by strictly complying with the PRC Labour Law,
the PRC Labour Contract Law and other applicable PRC employment
regulations throughout our production processes, and by promoting fair
and equal treatment in all areas of human resources, including recruitment
and promotion, compensation and dismissal, working hours, diversity, rest
periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
We usually recruit staff in colleges to ensure the candidates have sufficient
working capability. In addition, we also check candidates’ identification
documents to avoid hiring child labour. It is our policy to avoid child labour
and forced labour in any of our operations. We believe that the Group can
uphold human rights and prevent child labour and forced labour by strictly
complying with the above laws and regulations and internal policy.
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In adherence with high standards of business ethics and anti-bribery policies,
all employees (including the Directors) are required to abide by our ethics
policy. Our employees are prohibited from conducting themselves in any
way which involves any illegal behaviours by taking advantage or abusing
their positions, including but not limited to bribery, fraud, extortion, money
laundering and illegally obtaining or accepting benefits from others. In
addition, a whistleblowing policy has been implemented to provide a secured
reporting channel for employees and stakeholders including, among others,
customers and suppliers to report any suspected misconduct or malpractice

involving the Group.

Our Directors are reminded to avoid making decisions and abstain from
voting if they are aware of potential conflicts of interest in any meetings.
Our staff handbook also included anti-corruption clauses to enhance staff’s
awareness of handling conflict of interest situations. We set the tone at the
top and implement these rules at all levels in the Group. Our in-house training
is mandatory and applicable to all staff without distinction by gender. During
the year under review, we provided training of various topics to all our staff in

accordance with their work levels, job nature and duties.

During the year under review, there had been no incidences of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group regarding, among others, safe working environment,
occupational hazards, employment and labour practices, bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, preventing child and forced labour and anti-
corruption and no legal proceedings or cases regarding corrupt practices had

been instituted by or brought against the Group and/or its employees.
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The following table summarised the employment information of the major
PRC subsidiaries of the Group for the past three consecutive years.
2022
g
Number of employees BEAE 2,360
By gender % R 48
All grades F A& 4% 75
— Male — B4 1,983
- Female — % 377
Supervisory level FER
— Male — B4 57
— Female — 1
Managerial level KIRAR
- Male —5MH 7
- Female — 2% 1
By age group HERAER DB
— Under 30 —30 LT 565
- 30 to 50 —305% £505% 1,693
— Above 50 —50m% L E 102
By employment type R EERN DB
- Permanent —&H 2,359
— Temporary —EREF 1
Staff turnover ratio® BT Rk
All grades F A 4k 51
- Male — B4 5.8%
- Female -z 0.6%
By age group BERER DR
— Under 30 — 30 AT 4.3%
- 30to 50 —307% £505% 1.8%
— Above 50 —50m L £ 0.3%
Number of fatalities® TETEWRHC -
Rate of fatality T EHEK -
Lost time injury (“LTI")¢ BERIFITEH (MBRIRIG) 1
Rate of LTI° BRIFRT e 0.21%
Training hours® (per month) BIIFEe (EA)
— General ——f& 12.2
— Middle-level —hiR 18.2
— Senior — =4k 18.2

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Staff turnover represents the employees (permanent and temporary) leaving
the Group voluntarily. Given that the employment information presented above
is related to the major subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, the staff turnover
ratio for different geographical region is not applicable.

Fatality is the death of an employee as a result of an occupational injury
incident in the course of employment.
The rates are the number of incidents within a financial year relative to the total

number of hours worked in the same financial year. The rates are normalised
to 1,000,000 worked hours.

LTl is an occupational injury sustained by an employee for which the employee
misses one or more scheduled workdays after the day of injury.

The average number of training hours per employee is calculated as the total
internal training hours to different employee categories.

RENBRMIERAIRAR

TERBEAERFZREMBERARDBE
—EEEFENRERER -

2021 2020
T —4F TECEF
2,323 2,313
1,932 1,925
391 388
56 56

1 1

9 9

1 1

787 592
1,465 1,646
71 75
2,281 2,294
42 19
6.7% 5.2%
0.7% 0.7%
4.6% 3.0%
2.6% 2.6%
0.2% 0.3%
- 1

- 0.18%

6 2
1.26% 0.37%
11.4 14.8
16.6 19.8
21.4 33.5
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Suppliers

We have developed trust with our suppliers. We, as a leading cornstarch
manufacturer, play an important role in the procurement of corn kernel in
Shouguang and Linging districts, which are located in Shandong province.
During the year under review, we had not less than 2,500 corn kernel
suppliers and all of them are located in the PRC. Our suppliers mainly consist
of farmers, cooperatives, agents and traders in the PRC. We provide our
corn kernel offer price to our suppliers by using mobile technology. While our
procurement is carried out on a 24/7 basis, we propose corn kernel offer
prices to our suppliers through mobile technology to increase efficiency. We
believe that our suppliers will deliver the best corn kernel to us at their first
priority because our offer prices are transparent and we show commitment to
purchase at our initial offer prices.

Our second largest material supplier group is the suppliers of chemical
materials and consumables. We had not less than 600 of these suppliers
during the year under review and they are also located in the PRC. In order to
have a fair, transparent and competitive environment, it is our policy to publish
our tender invitation on the company’s website. Offer price given by tenderers
is not the only crucial factor considered by us. Historical compliance
records, such as labour practices, business ethics and environmental
protection policies, will also be considered during the selection process. We
have a similar procedure for the selection of construction and equipment
contractors.

The Group also has a quality assurance policy for all our suppliers. We
conduct supplier audits and on-site inspections to (i) ensure that the
materials used by our suppliers complied with the contract specifications
(and in particular, specifications on environmentally preferable products,
where applicable); and (i) review any potential risk or issue on environment
and labour practice. If the performance of work is carried in our site, the
contractor is also required to follow our factory safety regulations.

It is our target to maintain an open and fair business environment for our
partners. We are committed to maintaining highest standards of openness,
probity and accountability. Not only do we have a whistle-blowing policy
which allows the report of any misconduct, but we also have an anti-bribery
provision in our procurement agreements stating the consequence of the
breach of the Group’s anti-corruption policy. Such policies are supervised and
managed by members of the Board to ensure their efficient implementation.
During the year under review, the Group did not receive any reports in respect
of staff or supplier corruption.
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Customers

Product safety is a great issue as we produce base raw materials for our
customers. Our products can be reproduced for animal feeds or other
products for human intake. The maintenance of high product quality is the
only key to customers’ loyalty. Our quality assurance programme ensures
that our product standards can be identified precisely in accordance with
the Chinese national standards issued by The Standardization Administration
of the PRC. Each quality report and product recall request, if any, from our
customers will be investigated and examined seriously by our designated
quality control team to determine the appropriate follow-up actions. In many
cases, the product quality was affected during delivery or the production
method in the customer’s production facilities. During the year under review,
the Group did not receive any substantiated and material complaints on its
products that the Group had to recall and treat the whole batch of products
as scrap material for safety and health reasons. In addition, we also work
closely with our customers to develop our order book and provide the
required products at the right time.

During the year under review, there had been no incidences of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group regarding health and safety, marketing and labelling.

Governments

One of our major stakeholders is government authorities. The Group shows
its commitment to improve production efficiency by using modernised
production facilities and deploying resources in the development of
production knowhow. The payback of these investments would not be within
a short time. To ensure that the development direction is on the right way with
long-term government support, we maintain good working relationships with
the municipal governments. We expect that our continuous commitments
and support to the government authorities would assist them in better
understanding and responding to our industry needs.

Business Strategic Partners

It is the Group’s vision to become a leading market player in the corn-
refinery industry in the PRC. Our business strategies are formulated on
this basis. Now, we are gradually moving towards cornstarch-derivative
markets representing high value-added products and higher barriers of entry.
We welcome cooperation with other leading market players and develop
businesses with them.

To ensure long-term success, we carry out market assessment analysis on
potential products cautiously. It is important to select a suitable business
partner who should have a high reputation in the industry and a proven
successful business record.
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Shareholders

One of the major stakeholders of the Company is our shareholders. We share
our business objective with and create value for our shareholders. Our long-
term corporate strategy is to maximise total shareholder return. The Board
undertakes the management responsibility on behalf of our shareholders.
During our decision-making process, we strive to strike a balance among
various factors, including without limitation, maintaining a healthy balance
sheet, choosing sustainable development projects, and determining the
optimal financial requirements of the Group.

The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy setting out the
principles of the Company in relation to shareholders’” communications, with
the objective of ensuring the availability of balanced and understandable
information and each of the shareholders is treated equally. We encourage
shareholders and potential investors to read the Company’s corporate
communication policy, which is available on the Company’s website.

Environment

Environmental Policies

The Group understands that our business has an impact on the environment
and we recognise the importance of sound environmental management
practices and sustainable business operations. We are committed to meeting
all environmental standards and policies as set by the PRC government.

Throughout the year under review, there were no material incidences of non-
compliance with the relevant environmental laws and regulations nor were
there climate-related issues that have a significant impact on the Group. Our
environmental strategy is to achieve a balance between cost of production on
one hand, and greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions and sewage disposal on
the other hand. Our business is both energy and water intensive, the Group
has its own facilities to reduce GHG emissions and treat sewage before
disposal to city sewage network. A perpetual monitoring system on sewage
disposal is reported to the local environmental protection bureau and open to
public inspection. In order to protect our environment and reduce the cost of
production, we use methane generated from sewage treatment to produce
steam for internal use.
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We currently do not set any target for the reduction of emission of non-
hazardous waste. It is because these factors are easily affected by the
product mix and the method of production. For example, the energy
consumption ratio for liquid sweetener and crystallised sweetener are
materially different. We perpetually adjust our production plan to satisfy our
customers’ orders on one hand and maximise the efficiency of utilities and
other resources consumption ratio on the other hand, having regard to the
importance of sound environmental management practices and sustainable
business operations.

During the year under review, the Group did not produce any hazardous
waste in our production plants. In addition, most of our non-hazardous
wastes are collected and sold to third parties for other uses.

Use of Resources

Other than corn kernel, electricity and steam are the other two major
elements during production. The electricity we used is mainly generated
from coal in Shandong province. Although the Group does not have any
option to choose the source for the production of energy, we spend much
effort to improve production efficiency and, in return, we can reduce the
GHG intensity indirectly. For example, the management team reviews the
energy consumption rate and sets a new target at the beginning of every
financial year. The management team monitors the status of achieving such
targets regularly and, apart from cost-efficiency, energy-efficiency would also
be taken into account by our management team when making production-
related decisions. Water is a vital resource for our planet. It is used to grow
crops, feed animals and people, generate electricity and steam, and produce
our products. We extract underground water during production and use our
own reclaimed water treatment facilities to minimise over-reliance on using
underground water and its impact on the environment. We are committed to
using water responsibly. While we do not set specific water reduction targets,
it is the general strategy and direction of our Group to reduce the overall
resource consumption during our production process, all while maintaining
our production level and efficiency. This is expected to be achieved through
continuous review and evaluation of our ESG performance, business strategy
and sustainability goals.

Packaging Materials

The usage of packaging material would change in accordance with the
customer’s packaging requirements. We encourage our customers to use
reusable packaging material. During 2022, packaging material used for
finished goods was about 10,240 tonnes. Among which, newly purchased
reusable packaging material was about 7,515 tonnes for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: 672 tonnes). The substantial increase in the usage
volume of packaging materials was mainly attributable to the following
factors:

(i) The Group disposed of old packing bags, which were replaced with
more durable bags.

(i) The domestic sales of the Group increased and we had to provide
our own packaging materials for domestic customers. Instead, the
customers would provide their own packaging materials for export
sales directly.
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The following table summarised the environment-related information for all

major subsidiaries of the Group for the past three consecutive years.

Fresh water used (md) FrAEE &K QLA XK)
Fresh water consumption intensity &7k HFE3aE 158

index'
Electricity used (GWh) FrAEN (FRF)
Electricity consumption intensity 88 /738 ¥ER E 5 &

index’
Steam used (tonne) Ffr B 7555 (HB)
Steam consumption intensity index' & /54 & 58 E 58U
Fuel used (litre) FrAMREL (AFH)

— Diesel — L&

— Unleaded petrol —mES0H
GHG emissions? (tonne of COze) &= GBS HE e

(B E | 1EH)

- Scope 1" — & E1n
— Scope 2 —#[E2
— Total GHG emission’ —RERBSEHER

GHG emission intensity index* BE R AR E e H
Water discharged (m?) KBEME QLA AK)
- Waste water to recycled water ~ —EEKELAEIRBAK
- Waste water to sewage — R E S KBS RIEE K
network
Non-hazardous waste' produced £ MIEERREEY) (E)
(tonne)

2022
—g-C
2,164,876

152
786

103

2,573,524
920

414,432
59,106

1,279
1,273,946
1,275,225

96
4,050,311
2,996,180

71,925

Packaging material used™ (tonne)  FTFE ELEEHp kI (15F)

f

Fresh water, electricity and steam consumption intensity indices are calculated
as the intensity of fresh water, electricity and steam consumed per tonne of
physical product produced in the financial year relative to the intensity in the
2016 base year (set to 100).

The methodology used for the determination of emissions for the financial
year 2016 is based on various documents, such as 2006 IPCC Guidelines for
National Greenhouse Gas Inventories, and the 2015 Baseline Emission Factors
for Regional Power Grids in China issued by the Department of Climate
Change and IPCC Fifth Assessment Report.

Scope 1 emissions represent the emissions from combustion of fuels at
stationary sources to generate electricity, steam, or heat which are owned or
controlled by the Group and transportation emissions from owned or operated
vehicles.

Scope 2 emissions are emissions from consumption of purchased electricity,
steam and heat.

Total GHG emissions are direct emissions, plus emissions from the net change
of purchasing and selling of electricity and steam.

GHG emission intensity index is calculated as the GHG emissions from
physical products produced in the financial year relative to the intensity in the
base year (set to 100). The base year is 2016.

Non-hazardous wastes mainly represent sludge, saccharified residue,
inactivated bacteria residue and fertiliser.

The quantity includes reusable packaging material that has been used many
times.
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2021 2020
=4 T BF
2,037,133 2,095,597
134 156

735 741

95 104
2,424,367 2,592,062
86 97

407,155 402,926
84,577 84,700
1,312 1,300
1,262,320 1,237,561
1,263,632 1,238,861
90 100
4,032,190 3,123,921
2,732,015 2,829,307
66,590 70,717
7,888 7,893
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Other Environmental and Social Areas
Staff care

During the year under review, the Group organised various activities, such as poker
and chess competitions, tug-of-war competitions, Lantern Festival, Women’s Day
Festival, bicycle day and other activities for its staff. These activities could achieve
good team spirit and enhance harmony in the workplace. The expenses used
for these staff activities were not material to the Group. It is the Group’s policy to
contribute to activities which can benefit the community and create positive values for
society through our business and operation.

As there are many COVID-19 cases in many cities in the PRC, the management
keeps reminding our staff to maintain their personal and family hygiene. We have set
up body temperature checkpoints at each entrance of our premises and reduced the
frequency of business travellings. We believe that these measures would reduce the
chance of infection and the risk of spreading COVID-19 to our community.

Intellectual property rights

We spend many resources on research and development of new products or
innovation of new production methods. It is very difficult to quantify the result of our
study outcome in monetary terms. The use of this knowhow, however, can improve
our production efficiency and control our cost effectively. In order to protect our
research and development results, the Group will register the results with the National
Intellectual Property Administration in the PRC.

Consumer data protection and privacy policies

Our transactions are a business-to-business model. Therefore, consumer data
protection and privacy policies are not material to our operation.
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Risk Review Report
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Our risk measurement philosophy

An effective risk review system could help an entity minimise and manage risks
efficiently. Our risk management and internal control systems are not one-off
arrangements; instead they are integrated into our daily business operations
and decision-making process. The objective of upholding a high standard of risk
management and internal control is to guarantee the sustainability of the Group’s
development.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. These systems are monitored by the Board through the assistance
of the Audit Committee, Corporate Strategy and Development Department and
Internal Audit Department.

Identifying risks

The management uses risk scorecard to rank and compare each identified risk and its
related impact posing to the Group. Through this analysis process, all identified risks
are presented to the Board in an effective and comprehensible manner. The Board
reviews the risks and mitigation tools every year.

How we manage risk

Risk and control responsibility must be well-defined and delegated to each staff. Each
staff must understand their duty and recognise their responsibility. A well-defined
control prevention system is a key to success. Our risk prevention mechanism is as
follows:
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Risk ownership

R B A3

Monitoring

i it
BB

Compliance review

The executive management team is assigned the responsibility for managing risks and monitoring the
implementation of risk mitigation policies. In addition, the team heads are required to pledge themselves to ensure
appropriate control procedures are in place within their respective teams to the Chief Executive Officer once a
year.

HITEEEKaEEERMILEERBEFEBRAEEB R L S NEFERSFERITHRRIAERERE
ZENEKEH T BNEERR -

A monthly management report in respect to the operation, market and safety issues is circulated amongst the
management team. It allows the management to stay alert on potential risks in different seasons.
BANKE - THEAZE2EERNEERRREREERS  CEBEHIAAZTHIETRRRITERS

Internal Audit Department considers the review areas for the coming year and discusses its plan with the Audit
Committee. It also carries out ad-hoc tasks on specific areas which required by the Board or the management.
The internal audit report will be discussed with the respective department head and reviewed by the Board
respectively.

NESBIZAPIEZEBRENEEHE TREZEZETNHEE AT REEFENEREENERFFEAEEE
THREEZ NEEZRESFAKHMITEN R THESSHER -
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Challenges

The Group recognised the threat of COVID-19 cases as our major concern, which
was brought forward from last year. We reduced our staff’s travelling frequency
and encouraged the use of electronic meetings to replace physical meetings with
customers or suppliers. If a physical meeting was inevitably required, we requested

PR

REERAEERRHCOVID-197 6B B 2K
HEOCHNEEBE - FHMBE R E TR EREEX
TEEBFEAETFeRNBREANERENER
R oMAERTERSS RAEREI AT

our staff to monitor their physical condition after the journey. We also have a #BEAESERZ - BMATSH EEIEEEEM

contingent operation plan for handling COVID-19 cases in the production facilities.

Principle risks analysis

Principle risk and uncertainty identification are part of our risk management system.
During the year under review, the Board held one meeting to discuss the risks and
mitigation tools. The following analysis shows the major risks and uncertainties that
are considered material and may adversely affect the business and financial position

of the Group.
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Major risks

TEEME

Mitigation plans

& 4% = i st &

Lack of growth dynamic in the PRC

QOur businesses are dependent on the prosperity of the Chinese market.
The challenge of oversupply and weak demand for cornstarch and its
related products accelerates over the year.

R EHDIERE N

HPNEBRBIRRETBHER KRR REARERHBBIR KRS
RIESSHI BB P A

Maintain a strong balance sheet

Maintain sufficient banking facilities

Strengthen the credit control of customers

Develop our business in a cornstarch-derivative product market

HRRERNEEERR
REFRHANRTHE
MEHERNEEEE
BERERBMITEERTZOES

Failure to operate our plants as scheduled

Production schedule may be affected by working safety review and
environmental review.

We have no compromise on staff safety. Failure to follow safety laws,
regulations and standards may result in workplace accidents involving injury
or fatality. During the year under review, we spend much effort to ensure that
safety controls are in place.

In order to fulfil a regional gas pollutant or sewage discharge benchmark
set by the local government, factories in the region may be required to limit
their production output temporarily. The frequency of such requirements may
increase in the future.

BPNIREEZMEEE

FESBAERITFZ2BEERRBNGHZE-
HMEETLZE2RE LBTED - MREETEZRED  ROIREE 7]
FEEENTIEMBELTIN ERBET -REBFE RASNEREZE

Bz eEE-

AT A BB ENENRES RS KEERER e T
PP AE B IRE R Y B IRGIE 8 - HEZE RO RBIER KRBT AEZIEMN

Safety Supervision Department to oversee all safety issues of the
Group

Corporate Strategy and Development Department to monitor control
procedures in place regularly

Perform various safety exercises and safety drills regularly

Maintain high level of gas emission/sewage discharge standard
during our production

CERERAEEMEREEE

TN ENEREC XS EREEER
EHETEEZ2EIRZERE
REEFRESRENRBIR 75 KBKT
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Major risks

FERE

Mitigation plans

EF 4R E Bt A

Failure to minimise adverse impacts from national-wide disruptive
forces such as disease and natural disaster

External events (such as swine flu, extreme weather, and crop failure) would

have a significant impact on our business. This could happen at any time
without warning.

BERERRREAKXEZAZERRERZNFHNEERERE

ShERRME (FERB BIR KRR REVRE) BRERMANEBEREAT
Bo-ZBERILBMEMEAEL BRAIEEE-

Sourcing from national food reserve or other regions
Maintain adequate insurance to protect our assets
Review and update our mitigation plan regularly

Set up emergency mitigation action group if necessary

RERE R FHEIE MM ERE
RERMVRBURERFANEE
TEHRAE 5 R B T 4R LR 51 8
BRI B B AR B RT3 VAR

Extra cost to neutralise greenhouse gas (“GHG”) footprint

The transfer of carbon neutrality roadmap to carbon neutrality policy would
affect business operations. It may also increase operating costs and affect
capital investment.

RIRERE (CREERME)) BUMEIME A

MR MR ARE AR P NHR R EEREE IR R mES
AN BERKE -

Engage external GHG professional parties (eg. local universities) to
assist the Group to evaluate any new investment projects
Investment in the use of power-saving equipment

Participate in the government/industry workgroup of setting GHG
standards

ZEIMPRERBEERE WEHKE) LR REE
MIRERE

RAGANERAE
SEZIAERBEENEN, ER TN

SHEER

Failure to maintain our product quality

Our product may not achieve our customer’s required level of quality or
national standards. Poor quality or sub-standard products could have a
negative impact on our brand image and reputation.

BEGFEMNNERES

RPN ERTEREZINZABERPVEBKFREARRTE - BEELHF
SRNEREHRMNRBIEIRBEEELEERE

Undertake strict quality control and product testing

Carry out periodic product recall drills to improve the handling
process of product recalls shall they arise, hence minimising the
potential negative impact of any sub-standard product on the Group

ETBRENEEREMAE
ERETERBERS  UBEEEER QLR RERE  m
REFTERERAFAEENETEEZERERD

Failure to maintain production software security

The increase in using automated production methods can reduce headcount
effectively. However, it increases the exposure to software malfunction risk.
Operations may be interrupted by a cyber-attack or false human input.

BERFEERNRR

EINERBEBEEENS EZIBRRLETHE AT HIEGMN T RAH
MR R - BE R AE G AR IR A T A SRR P

Real-time power supply monitoring system

Implement strict physical security control in restricted areas, e.g.
control room

Use of firewall and antivirus software

BRNHEBHEERR
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Major risks

FTERE

Mitigation plans

AP 4R E It A

Failure to manage price fluctuation in cornstarch, corn kernel and
energy costs

Cornstarch and corn kernel prices are more volatile in recent years. We may
not pass the increased cost to customers immediately and may result in a
significant loss.

EREERI KB ERNKRAERM A 2 B KE

PR FORIBD B TR RIS R BB © F I BT S8 7% RN B I 16 IO B9 AR
FEEZR NMEMREKREBR-

Monitor the commodity price movement closely
Use derivatives
Set energy consumption reduction target

PUEREmERET
ERTEER
I E BN AEFEAE B AR

Breach of legal and regulatory requirements

It is a trend that environmental protection-related rules and regulations will
be more stringent year by year. Government policies may change without
prior signals. Evolving standards, rules and regulations could result in
increased costs, regulatory actions, or in extreme cases, litigation or plant
closure.

BRERREEER

BRI RAEMMARRB KRG —FE—F R LEMSBE -
TR A R 2 EAIVIER Tl E - RE RAKRRHI T8
SR EgERNA LANBREETH £HBEERTENE
GE R e RARI TRE

Regular monitoring and review of changes in laws and regulations
Act as a representative of industry group and participate in the
government policy/regulation-making stage

TR T Rt st A DI BR B E B
BETEERNAR EBRESR RO ERERNA

Failure to promote new products

The Group may not execute a new product project as planned.

BERENER

FEBRDEZGFBMRTHERER -

Market research and feasibility study on potential new product

HETNERETHHBERATITHEMSE

Failure to meet expansion target

Business combination, acquisition or formation of joint venture may not
achieve the expected outcome as planned.

mEARMRHERR

FEHOO B S E R B AL BIESTRIAMR -

Due diligence work on a potential acquisition target
Engage legal advisors to advise on investment or cooperation
proposal

HETWEERETERRESE
ZEAZBEEMRENSFERRHER

The Board considered the internal control system is effective and adequate for the
year ended 31 December 2022. No significant areas of concern that might affect the

Group were identified.

It should be acknowledged that our risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China Starch Holdings
Limited (the “Company” or “China Starch”) understands maintaining high corporate
governance standards is crucial to success in the future. The Board and its dedicated
executive management teams always demonstrate its commitment in upholding
sound internal control standards, accountability and integrity to the shareholders and
stakeholders of the Company.

China Starch’s Mission and Objective

China Starch is committed to becoming a leading corn deep-processing
manufacturer in China. Starting from 1998, we have been focusing on the application
development of cornstarch and other related products. Our business decisions and
objective are formulated based on “3S”:

FzrREE ((EE) g ((EF8) FRREEK
FREEAHPEBRMZERERAS ((EABIH
THREIRD ) ARSI EEN -EFF
HESHHTEEER -—EREDALBDRRER
FmARERTERER RIFBIRME R
RIS M K E T BRI A

PERZ Ea kBT

PEBRMBAONESPEERERRMIRE
Be B—ANNEE RA-—BFENERBRH R
HMAARMEROEAME - RMINEHRRRE
RTYER T3S IHIE -

Shareholders: Staff: Society:

PR : BE : #HE:

Providing reasonable investment Providing opportunities for Creating elements of sustainable

returns employees to realise their own value development

RIESELERIR ~ESEBRESSBEEREHS RIEAKBEREEZER
Corporate Governance Practices TEERER

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year under review and
has applied the principles as laid down with the aim of achieving a high level
of governance, except that Mr. Tian Qixiang (the chairman of the Board and an
executive Director) did not attend the 2022 annual general meeting of the Company
(the “2022 AGM”) because of his other business engagement.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code (the “Dealing Code”) on
terms no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Dealing Code
applies to all Directors and to all employees who are informed that they are subject to
its provisions. The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and that all the
Directors confirmed their compliance with the required standard set out in the Dealing
Code throughout the year under review.

The Board

The Board is accountable to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
for its leadership and control and is collectively responsible for promoting the
Company’s long-term success and businesses by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Board is currently composed of four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. All members of the Board are subject to
the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties in upholding their accountability
to the Shareholders and in making decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BRHREFEE (EETEIREITES) BEM
EBEIMUEBHFEARND T _FRRBF
A ((ZT-FRREFRG) S EAR2EE
REBFERETEEMARZPMBRAT (M2
Fiy) 835 EARRN (T ARALY) M8+ KPR &R0
EERTA (TREERTR) HRINBEATR
RO LEABATHENRIUERSKTFEES
NN

EENEFRS

ARABERMEBINESFEETR ((EET
A1) > BEARRRR EE L AR BB 8%+ PREURO £ 8%
TABEETESXZNRETARRZR -EET
AEARAER A EBNAETZ TR
ENEE-ARBEREBEEFLARSTHN 2
RESHEARENEELBEE—BETEET
Bl P B BY AR EARZE ©

EXYg

EERARAEREFEARAPAARERE (M
R)EE THASERESIKEERRABDEHRE
MARABRBREEXF EXGHA AN
LHTEER=RBUFNTESEAN -EEF
FREMEYRETHBENEERKITTERRZE
BEE URRFREERERMEHTEERE KR
IREREEBE R 2R R °

39

B _FFER



Corporate Governance Report
TEEBRWS

The Board, being the governing body of the Company, had led the management in
performing the following duties during the year under review:

° Formulating long-term and short-term strategic and business plans

o Approving the Group’s annual forecasts

o Evaluating the business performance of the Group

° Ensuring the integrity of financial information

° Evaluating the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems

° Developing, reviewing and monitoring the Group’s corporate governance

policies and practices and ensuring their implementation in accordance
with the CG Code (including but not limited to reviewing and monitoring the
training and CPD development of the Directors, the compliance with the
CG Code and the Dealing Code, as well as reviewing the disclosures in this
Corporate Governance Report)

o Ensuring the Group’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

To facilitate effective management, the Board has delegated certain functions
to various Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Each of these Board committees
operates under their respective written terms of reference on terms no less exacting
than the code provisions as set out in the CG Code. Suggestions and conclusions of
the Board committees will be reported to the Board in its subsequent meeting.

In addition, the Board also delegates the day-to-day operational responsibilities to the
executive management team under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer. The
Chief Executive Officer, working with the executive management team, is responsible
for the operations and business development of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Tian Qixiang holds the position of the
Chairman, and is primarily responsible for the strategic positioning. Mr. Gao Shijun
serves as the Chief Executive Officer, and is primarily responsible for the operations
and business development of the Group.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s)) among the Directors and in particular, between Mr. Tian
Qixiang (Chairman) and Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer). The biographies of
the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles”.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Company Secretary

Mr. Leung Siu Hong, the company secretary of the Company, is a full-time employee
of the Group. He also serves as the secretary of each of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and other board committees as
organised by the Board from time to time. Mr. Leung is responsible for advising
the Board through the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on governance
matters, for example, to ensure Board procedures and applicable laws and
regulations are followed.

Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountant. Mr. Leung is also a
fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute and The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute.

During the year under review, Mr. Leung took no less than 15 hours professional
training to update his skills and knowledge.

2022 Board and Committee Meeting Attendance and Training
Record

During the year under review, the Board held four regular meetings and one additional
meeting. The regular Board meetings are scheduled one year in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance by the Directors. Other additional Board meetings are
convened as and when required.

Our Directors recognised the importance of participating in continuous professional
development (the “CPD”) to develop and refresh their knowledge and skill, which can
help them keep abreast of current trends and issues facing the Group and ensure
better fulfiiment of their duties as directors of the Company.
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The attendance record of the Directors at Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and the 2022 AGM, together with the type of training received by each of

the Directors during the year under review are as follows:

EENDBREENES=S

BB EFELEET
BRCEI_ERI/BEFREGHFLE URE
EFRMEZHNEIENNT

Board Meetings Board Committee Meetings
-4 EE8Z5883
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Type of
Regular Others Committee Committee Committee 2022 AGM  CPD received
k- S FrERNER
EH Hit BHZEE HWzEEE RAZEE RREEAE SERRER
Executive Directors: BiTES.
M. Tian Qixiang (Chairman) HERLE (FR) 3/4 17 NARER 11 11 X AB
Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer) BUELE (THEH) 4/4 1N N/A RE NATER NATER / AB
Mr. Liu Xianggang AZRBRE 4/4 17 NARER NARER NATER / AB
Mr. Yu Yingquan FHERREE 404 1N N/A RE NATER NATER / AB
Independent non-executive Directors: B EHTES:
Professor Hua Qiang TERER 4/4 11 33 1/1 11 / AB
Mr. Sun Mingdao hEERE 4/4 17 3/3 1 1 v/ AB
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken SEERE 44 11 3/3 11 11 / AB
A Attending briefings/seminars/webinars/forums/workshops/conferences relating to A HEEEERBNEMEREEERANER
directors’ duties or other relevant topics g /Mg B g wmiE S TS
|ny
B Reading materials, such as newspapers, journals, business updates and regulatory B REREB KERLENESHBAMNOM

updates relating to business, economy or directors’ duties

Board Diversity

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. The
current Board Diversity Policy provides that the Company should not have a single
gender Board. In designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural, race, educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and independence under the Board Diversity Policy as published on the Company’s
website. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

The existing members of the Board consist of male Directors only. In March 2022, the
Board unanimously agreed to appoint at least one director of a different gender to the
Board by the end of 2024. We believe a different gender board will give a balanced
view, save for the working experience and academic background, in formulating
decisions at the strategic level. The Company also endeavours to provide an equal
working environment and provide same opportunities to our people. In the future, we
will continue to encourage our female staff to participate in organising staff activities
and express their ideas in different staff panels.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Director’s Appointments, Re-election and Removal

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
general meeting.

Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of one year subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles. Each
independent non-executive Director is required to inform the Company as soon as
practicable if there is any change that may affect his independence and must provide
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards, using and
applying consistently suitable accounting policies and making reasonable and prudent
judgement and estimates. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may affect the business of the Company or cast
doubts on its ability to continue as a going concern.

The financial information and plans were discussed in the regular Board meetings.
The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are responsible for
explaining the latest business development and financial projections to the Directors.

During the year under review, the fees payable to the external auditor of the Group,
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, and its affiliated firms comprise service charges for
the following:

EENZE -EERER

RIEANBDERMA BREFREVE=FH
MBE—R - ERAIAFRR ZRAERIEE
EMEZENERETERELRBD T —RERRE
RE ERBEERNZREAG LEZEE
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AR REREZEE - HHREAIELES
VIRMITERB I MENET SFIIFNTES
HAETENTHER TERBANARR WA
MEBIERRRBERFEERED

L0222

EXEERED REFEERETBHYHFREER
REBGSHERRRMABTMAFHIRE HEH
BHx TEEHNERRERBENGER
MR AR BB T HBH B R (5t - ESE G0 5
EREMETEGEELARDNEFTASHFTE
REEENRENEM B REBNERTAME
o

EXEEETHEETIRYBERNME AR
AEFERTHASEEERNSEETHERMHNES
BRI BER

REBEFER > BYAEBRINSZHBEE KT
(B8 EstNEEMERADREBBATN
BERGEUTREBER !

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—

HK$000 HK$000

FAET FHET

Audit service BEIZR 1,180 960

Review of interim results ERPRAEE - 300

Others HAth 230 -
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Each company and industry is associated with specific inevitable risks. We cannot
avoid them, but we adopt the best and responsible approach to manage and
overcome them. Our risk management and internal control systems have been in
place for many years, which provide the assurance of operation efficiency, work
safety and safeguarding of assets. The Company does not set up a designated
committee for reviewing risk management and internal control systems. However, the
Board undertakes the responsibility for monitoring the business risks and formulating
plans and risk management policies to mitigate potential risks and uncertainties
that materially affect the business of the Group. The Board is also responsible for
evaluating the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group. The risk management and internal systems are reviewed on an ongoing
basis by the Board in order to ensure that they are effective in providing reasonable
assurance in relation to the identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that,
based on the best information available and its own observations, the present risk
management and internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate.

The management team is delegated by the Board to identify, manage and mitigate
material risks that might adversely affect our business. Once the management team
considers any newly-identified risk to be material, it will report such risk to the Board
for assessment and consideration of implementing a corresponding mitigation plan
where appropriate. However, it is possible that certain risks remain undetected or
unidentified and risks currently identified as immaterial may eventually turn out to
be material to our Group. In view of the inevitable nature of certain risks associated
with our business and industry, our risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate unavoidable risks of failure to achieve
the Group’s business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The following diagram shows the risk management hierarchy of the Group, which ~ TR#EIAEENREREREHR  HIZHEMA
provides information on our processes used to identify, evaluate and manage  K#AFHEREEERRARIRENER
significant risks:

The Board
Bxg
. Monitoring business risks
BREBER
. Formulating plans and risk management policies
I E 51 & Fe FLBE B IR ER - The Board
. Evaluating effectiveness of risk controls and mitigation tools Exg
STt L BRI Ko & 4% T BB AR
. Overseeing and ensuring the conduct of reviews on the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems at ?
least annually
ERAERBEEVHAEENABREERANIEIZRR
EIT—RER Audit Committee
BERZEZES
Audit committee
BE%ZEE
. Reviewing the Group’s risk management and internal control ?
systems at least annually
SEELHASENAREERANSEERARET RSB Operational i
B Management Internal Audit
. , . g AEREL
o Ensuring the Group’s management has performed its duty EIEEE M

in implementing the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems
BRAEEEEERITHANTAEEARERRNEEEE
RIEEE

. Considering major findings on risk management and internal
control matters

ZERRAREERABEEEHFNEAER

Operational departments

EELM

. Identifying different risks and uncertainties in each operating
cycle
H Al S EEEEBPTRNRERE R AREERER

. Reporting identified risks and significant adverse business
factors
REEH AR RERTHEHAR

. Implementing risk controls and mitigation policies determined

by the Board
HITHESSE TR RS REFEBER
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Operational departments

The function of operational management includes, inter alia, the identification of
potential risks and the implementation of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, including risk controls and mitigation policies, as determined by the
Board in the course of daily operations.

The Group has built in the risk management culture from top to bottom. At
departmental level, the Group has prescribed, for each operational department, our
risk management principles, control procedures and code of conducts in order to
promote stronger understanding of stewardship responsibilities, delegation of duties,
and accountability for the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
At staff level, the Group has laid down the business ethics policy, whistleblowing
policy and inside information escalation policy to ensure that sufficient controls are in
place to guide our employees’ behaviours through, and ensure timely and decisive
responses to, potential and emerging crises. To enforce our people’s individual risk
management capabilities and minimise any gap between the Board’s risk vision and
the management’s actions, risk-related objectives are also integrated into employees’
annual performance goals and appraisal process.

The Group emphasises production safety and product safety in every aspect of our
operations. Safety always comes first.

The production safety function is carried out by the Safety Supervision Department
(the “SSD”) of the Group. The major functions of SSD includes, inter alia, the
promotion of risk management culture, compliance and regulatory standards. It also
carries out periodical drills on whole-factory scale, such as fire drill, prevention of dust
explosion review, safety review on working at height and use of corrosive chemicals,
regular staff examination on safety issues, etc.

The product safety function is carried out by the Corporate Strategy and
Development Department (the “CSDD”). It carries out product recall drills periodically.
In addition, CSDD also assists our department heads to develop control procedures
in their respective departments.

The management believes that periodic drills provide our employees with
opportunities to train and test their reactions under different critical situations. In
addition, it also allows the Group to evaluate the effectiveness of each of our codes of
conduct and risk management and internal control procedures.
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Internal audit is an important component of corporate risk management. The internal
audit function is performed by the Group’s Internal Audit Department (the “IAD”). The
major responsibilities of IAD are as follows:

(i) To carry out independent review on business activities;

(i) To analyse any potential control, operational, compliance and financial impact
on weaknesses;

(iif) To report findings on any weakness areas; and
(iv) To suggest improvement and remedy procedures.

Relationship of Audit Committee and the Board under risk
management framework

The Audit Committee is delegated with the responsibility to review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management systems at least
annually. Periodical review reports and presentations in relation to internal control and
risk management matters are provided to the Audit Committee by the management.
These reports allow the Audit Committee to assess the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems. Whenever a weakness of the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems is identified, the Audit Committee
is responsible for discussing its potential financial impacts and the corresponding
remedy procedures with the Board and the management. The Group had not been
aware of any material internal control failings or weaknesses affecting its overall
operation during the year under review.

A Risk Review Report set out on pages 31 to 34 summarised our works conducted
and the evaluation of risks associated with the Group during the year under review.

Inside information

An inside information escalation policy is in place and sets out the principles and
internal control procedures for guiding our Directors and relevant employees on the
handling and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner and in adherence
to the relevant laws and regulations. The policy is subject to review by the Board from
time to time in view of, among others, relevant legal and regulatory updates.

Audit Committee

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process, financial controls, internal control and risk management
system of the Group and to provide recommendations and advice to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor as well as their terms of
appointment.

The Audit Committee of the Company currently consists of all independent non-
executive Directors, namely Professor Hua Qiang, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai
Wa, Ken. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee performed the following duties:

o Reviewed the Group’s annual report and interim report

o Reviewed the significant accounting policy and the impact of the adoption of
new financial reporting standards

° Discussed the audit issues with the external auditor

o Reviewed the annual internal audit plan

o Made recommendation of the appointment of external auditor

o Reviewed the whistleblowing policy of the Group

o Assessed the independence of external auditor

° Reviewed and discussed the internal audit reports and risk management

findings with our management
Remuneration Committee

The major function of the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration policy and remuneration structure for all Directors.

Our remuneration policy prohibited our Directors from determining his or her
own remuneration. Each Director’s remuneration package has been considered
and/or reviewed periodically with respect to his or her individual performance,
responsibilities, financial performance of the Group, market practice and other
applicable factors.

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of all independent non-executive
Directors namely Professor Hua Qiang, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken
and the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors for the financial year 2021 and 2022 are the same. On 16 December 2022,
the Remuneration Committee reviewed the annual remuneration package of both the
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors for the financial year
2022 and has recommended to the Board that the annual remuneration for Directors
should remain unchanged for the financial year 2023. In addition, the Remuneration
Committee also reviewed and recommended changes to its terms of reference to the
Board in order to reflect their function in relation to share option schemes and share
award schemes with reference to the amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules as
effective from 1 January 2023.

None of the Directors participated in any discussion about his own remuneration in
the meetings regarding the review of remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The major functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure and
composition of the Board, to implement and review the Board Diversity Policy, to
review and provide recommendations to the Shareholders on the terms of Director’s
service contract, and to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Board adopts a board diversity policy that, in formally nominating a candidate,
the Board shall assess the suitability of a proposed candidate by taking into
account factors including but not limited to gender, age, cultural, race, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and independence. A
summary of the Group’s diversity policy is set out on page 38.

The Nomination Committee currently consists of all independent non-executive
Directors, namely Professor Hua Qiang, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken
and the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee performed the following
duties:

o Assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors

o Made recommendations on the re-election of retiring Directors to the Board

o Reviewed the background and suitability of a proposed independent non-
executive Director

o Evaluated the structure and composition of the Board

o Reviewed the Company’s Board Diversity Policy

o Reviewed the term of reference of the Nomination Committee

Nomination Policy

The Company sets out below the nomination procedures and the process and criteria
contained in the Nomination Policy adopted by the Board.

Nomination Procedures and Process

The factors listed below would be used principally by the Nomination Committee in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate.

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of the Nomination
Committee, and invite nominations of candidates from members of the Board if any,
for consideration by the Nomination Committee before its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not nominated by members of
the Board.

o For filling a casual vacancy or appointing an additional member to the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.

. For proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation.

o A circular will be sent to the shareholders of the Company to provide
them with the name, brief biography, proposed remuneration, (where an
independent non-executive Director is to be nominated) independence
and other information of the proposing candidate in accordance with the
requirements of the applicable laws, rules and regulations including those of
the Listing Rules.
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A shareholder can serve a written notice to the Company for the attention of
the Company Secretary of his or her intention to propose a certain person for
election as a Director. This written notice, together with (i) the information of
the candidate as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules and such other information as may be considered relevant to his or
her proposed election; and (i) the written consent by that person to the
publication of his or her personal data provided pursuant to (i) immediately
above, for publication by the Company in its corporation communication
documents in compliance with the Listing Rules or as may be required by
the Stock Exchange must be served at the principal place of business in
Hong Kong of the Company for a period of no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting and ending no later than 7 days
prior to the date of such meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general meeting.

Criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee

16

Business experience: The candidate should have significant experience
from a senior role in an area of business, public affairs or academia, relevant
to the Company. Awareness of the corn deep-processing industry would be
an advantage but not a requirement in all cases.

Public board experience: The candidate should have relevant expertise and
experience earned as a Board member of a reputable listed company or from
a senior position in his or her industry, public affairs or academia.

Diversity: The candidate should contribute to the Board being a diverse
body, with diversity reflecting gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, qualifications, skills and length
of service. Given the current composition of the Board, a female candidate
would be an advantage.

Standing: The candidate should be of the highest ethical character and have
a strong reputation and standing, both personally and professionally, in his or
her fields.

Time commitment: Each Board member must have sufficient time
available for the proper performance of his or her duties. Directors should be
sufficiently free of other commitments to be able to devote the time needed to
prepare for meetings and participate in induction, training, appraisal and other
Board associated activities.

Independence: For the candidate who is proposed as an independent non-
executive Director, he or she must satisfy all the independence requirements
as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. He or she must always be aware
of threats to his or her independency and avoid any conflict of interest with
the Company. He or she must be able to represent and act in the best
interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive and decisive.
The Nomination Committee may also consider such other factors as it may see fit
which are in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
Nomination Committee and the Board may set specific requirements, depending on
the development needs of the Company, for the candidates.

Communications with Shareholders

The objective of Shareholders’ communication is to provide our Shareholders with
detailed information about the Company so that they can engage actively with the
Company and exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner. The
Company uses various communication tools to promote effective communication with
its Shareholders and to provide them with balanced and understandable information
about the Company, including general meetings, annual and interim reports,
notices, announcements, circulars and electronic means of communication via the
Company’s website. The Board welcomes enquiries from Shareholders and will
review Shareholders’ enquiries on a regular basis. Shareholders and the investment
community may at any time make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent such information is publicly available. Specific enquiries and suggestions by
Shareholders can be sent by post to the Company’s office at Room 1101-1104,
11/F, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email to
ir@chinastarch.com.hk.

In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their enquiries to
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, via its website at www.tricoris.com, or by email to
is-enquiries@nhk.tricorglobal.com, or dial its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in person
at its public counter at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

A Shareholder’s Communication Policy was adopted by the Board in order to
promote effective communication between the Shareholders and the Company. This
policy is available on our website. The Board reviewed the communication activities
with the Shareholders during the year and based on such review was satisfied with
the implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholder's Communication Policy.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company can convene an extraordinary general meeting by depositing the requisition
in writing to the Company. The procedures for Shareholder(s) to convene and present
proposals at general meetings, including proposing a person for election as a
Director, are available on our website.

Constitutional Documents

For the purpose of (i) updating and amending the Memorandum and Articles of the
Company in line with the amendments made to the Listing Rules and applicable laws
and procedures of the Cayman Islands, (i) providing flexibility to the Company in
relation to the conduct of general meetings, and (i) making other consequential and
housekeeping improvements, the Shareholders passed a special resolution on 24
May 2022 to adopt the Second Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles.
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A summary of the amendments to the Memorandum and Articles is set out below:

to allow all general meetings (including, inter alia, an annual general meeting,
an extraordinary general meeting, any adjourned meeting or postponed
meeting) to be held as a physical meeting in any part of the world and at one
or more locations, or as a hybrid meeting or a virtual meeting;

to add certain new definitions (such as “Communication Facilities”, “Hybrid
Meeting”, and “Virtual Meeting”) to align the relevant provisions in the new
Memorandum and Articles with the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands
and the Listing Rules, and making corresponding changes to the relevant
Articles;

to provide Shareholders the right to speak at a general meeting;

to allow minority Shareholders, holding not less than one-tenth of the voting
rights, to convene a general meeting;

to require the Company to appoint, remove and approve one or more firms of
auditors by an ordinary resolution at a general meeting;

to provide for the proceedings of general meetings which are held at one or
more locations, or as a hybrid meeting or virtual meeting, and the powers of
the Board and the chairman of the general meeting in relation thereto;

to allow any Shareholder or Director attending and participating a general
meeting by means of Communication Facilities be deemed to be present at
that meeting;

to allow the Directors to postpone or make changes to a general meeting
when they in their absolute discretion consider it is inappropriate,
impracticable, unreasonable or undesirable to hold the general meeting on or
at the scheduled date or time or place or in the scheduled form, for example,
in case of bad weather conditions or other similar events, and making
corresponding changes to the relevant articles;

to allow for votes to be cast by the Shareholders electronically as the
Directors or the chairman of the general meeting may determine;

to allow instruments of proxy to be returned to the Company by electronic
means; and

to make other housekeeping amendments, including making consequential
amendments in line with the above amendments to the Memorandum and
Articles of the Company.

Details of the amendments brought about by the adoption of the Second Amended
and Restated Memorandum and Articles are set out in the Company’s circular dated
14 April 2022. The Second Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles are
available on both the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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rectors and Senior Management Profiles

Di
EE;EEJEQFiEHZik+?EE/A\ F%a)

Executive Directors

Mr. Tian Qixiang, aged 59, joined the Group in 2003. Mr. Tian is the chairman of
the Board and a member of each of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Board since 2007. Mr. Tian is principally responsible for the Group’s
strategic positioning. He is also responsible for formulating the Group’s business
development objectives and ensuring that such objectives are implemented by the
Board accordingly. Mr. Tian is also a director of Shandong Shouguang Juneng Golden
Corn Development Co., Ltd. (“Golden Corn”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Shouguang Golden Corn Biotechnology Limited (‘Golden Corn
Biotech”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, respectively.

Mr. Tian completed his study of Electricity and Water Irrigation from Water and
Electricity Machinery School in 1981 and graduated from The Shandong Province
Party Committee School of the People’s Republic of China with a diploma in
Economics Management in 1996. Mr. Tian obtained the qualification as a senior
economist in December 2002.

Mr. Tian is beneficially interested in approximately 54.58% of the issued share capital
of Merry Boom Group Limited (“Merry Boom”), a controlling shareholder of the
Company, and he is also a director of Merry Boom.

Mr. Gao Shijun, aged 55, joined the Group in 1998 and is currently the chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Gao is principally responsible for overseeing
the Group’s operations and business management. Mr. Gao is also a director of the
following subsidiaries of the Company:

- Golden Corn

- Golden Corn Biotech

- Linging Deneng Golden Corn Bio Limited

- Shouguang Golden Far East Modified Starch Co., Ltd
- Shouguang Juneng Musashino Biotechnology Co., Ltd

Mr. Gao obtained an undergraduate degree in Physics in 1989 and a Master of
Business Administration degree in 2012 from Shandong University. He was also
awarded the qualification of senior engineer in 2010. Mr. Gao is the permanent vice-
president of China Starch Industry Association.
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Mr. Liu Xianggang, aged 54, joined the Group in 1998. Mr. Liu is also a director of
Golden Corn and Golden Corn Biotech respectively. He is responsible for the Group’s
production technology developments and cornstarch production.

Mr. Liu graduated from Shandong Industrial University (subsequently amalgamated
into Shandong University in 2000) in 1990 with an undergraduate degree in Industrial
Management, and obtained a postgraduate diploma in Industrial Economics from the
Economics School of Shandong University in 2003. Mr. Liu also obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree from Shandong University in 2012. Mr. Liu obtained
the qualification as senior engineer in 2002. Mr. Liu is the deputy supervisor of the
Cornstarch Professionals Committee of China Starch Industry Association.

Mr. Yu Yingquan, aged 54, joined the Group in 2003. Mr. Yu is principally
responsible for the overall management in investment and corporate finance of
the Group. Mr. Yu is also a director of Golden Corn and Golden Corn Biotech
respectively.

Mr. Yu graduated from Shandong Hydro Institute in 1990 with a diploma in
Hydro Economic and Financial Management, and obtained a diploma in Finance
Management from Shandong Economics Management Institute in 1998. Mr. Yu
obtained the Certificate of Accounting Professional of the People’s Republic of China
issued by Finance Bureau of Shouguang City in 1997.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Hua Qiang, aged 51, has been appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 17 May 2016. Professor Hua also serves as a member of each of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Board.
Professor Hua has been a professor of the School of Biotechnology and the State
Key Laboratory of Bioreactor Engineering of the East China University of Science and
Technology since 2008. He obtained a bachelor and a master degree in chemical
engineering (major in biochemical engineering) from the Zhejiang University in 1993
and 1996 respectively. He also obtained a doctoral degree in information engineering
from the Kyushu Institute of Technology (Japan) in 2000. He was appointed as an
assistant professor of Institute for Advanced Biosciences of the Keio University
(Japan) from 2001 to 2004, and was appointed as a postdoctoral scholar of the
Department of Bioengineering of the University of California, San Diego from 2004
to 2007. He had also been a medical research scientist for Sanford Burnham Prebys
Medical Discovery Institute (formerly known as “Burnham Institute for Medical
Research”) (the United State of America) from 2007 to 2008.

Mr. Sun Mingdao, aged 74, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 5 September 2013. Mr. Sun also serves as a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Board. Mr.
Sun is an advisor to the China Starch Industry Association.

Mr. Sun had been a deputy director of the research centre and a vice general
manager of Wuhan Huali Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2007.
Mr. Sun had served as a standing committee member, and the Sixth and Seventh
Sessions’ chief secretary of China Starch Industry Association respectively.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken, aged 57, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 September 2007. Mr. Yue also serves as the chairman of
each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Board.

Mr. Yue is serving as an executive director, the chairman, the chief executive officer,
the company secretary and the compliance officer of Roma (meta) Group Limited
(*Roma”). He is also an independent non-executive director of Major Holdings Limited
(“Major”). The shares of Roma and Major are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Mr. Yue is a certified public accountant with solid experience in accounting, auditing
and corporate finance. Mr. Yue is also a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Colorado State Society of Certified Public Accountants.
He is also holding a specialist certificate and a practicing certificate in corporate
finance of the Hong Kong Securities Institute.

Senior Management
All the executive Directors are responsible for the various aspects of the business and

operation of the Group. These executive Directors are regarded as members of the
senior management team of the Group.
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Independent Auditor's Report
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L] L]
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.'..... SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
0.0.0 17/F, Chubb Tower, Windsor House,

311 Gloucester Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Starch Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
58 to 117, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(*HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Valuation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use

assets

Refer to notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting

policies notes 2.6, 2.7 and 2.24 respectively.

ME--BERREAREAEEENMGE
&

FEOR2BEEHM B REME16 R17TUKRE T
HHTEE2.6°2.7K%2.240

The key audit matter
FREHEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B PREFMEENG &

We identified the valuation of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements.

EME - BERREURTEAREENLESSHUBRSE
NEZN RMEREIEABEENEE.

As at 31 December 2022, carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets are approximately
RMB1,892,095,000 and RMB436,292,000 respectively, which
represented approximately 46% of total assets of the Group. It
involves a significant degree of judgement by the management
in assessing whether there are any indicators of impairment for
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets at the end
of the reporting period which may affect the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. Therefore,
it comes to our concern that there is a risk of valuation of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.
RIEBE__F+__B=+—H ME -BREAXKBUKRSEH
BHEENKRABEDINA AR1,892,095,0007T & AR &
436,292,00070 > 1 EEEEEREN46% BIEEREETT
EME -BERRBEUREAEEENRSHAREEEEMA
EEHYE - BEERREURCHEEEENREESIHNTZEN
BEDRREEHEAHE AL WMANEEAEYE -HEK
REURFEREESEETHENRRE

No impairment loss was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2022.

REE_ZT_F+B=+—HIEFE  wEEDEMRE
5380

Our audit procedures were designed to evaluate the
management’s assessment of the indicators of impairment
and, where such indicators were identified, assessed the
management’s impairment testing and identify any valuation risk
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

RANEFEFORS DR T ZEEE SR ET R AT 05T
REBREARBROBRT  sHEEEBFFHBBERNS Uk
BAE BERRBEURERAEEENERGERRE-

We have discussed with the management on the key
assumptions used in the management’s assessment of the
indicators of impairment. We have also physically inspected
whether the property, plant and equipment are kept in a good
condition on sample basis.
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RERFMRIT

53

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 TSI FER



Independent Auditor’s Report
VR A Ik e

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies

notes 2.8 and 2.9 respectively.
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The key audit matter
FARETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B hREAMEENS A

We have identified the impairment assessment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter because the loss allowance
involves significant degree of management estimation and may be
subject to management bias.

HNEREFIREEENEAGH RIERRNEERNRA
BMERTEZ BB R ETERMRESEE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB145,594,000.

B _F+ZRA=+—8>
145,594,0007T ©

EEEFESBRRROARE

Expected credit loss (the “ECL”) impairment model has been
adopted based on the provision matrix after considering ageing,
repayment history and/or past due status of respective trade
receivables.

TREAEEB1E (FREEEEE)) RERENNE RAME SR
WRIERBR L  BARE £ K, A B R 18 - IR RSB RE 4R
i o

Estimated loss rates are based on historical observed rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward
looking information including both current and forecast general
economic conditions.
ESEEELERNEBEATHRBERFRANELERERE I
PAIBEMEE R (BB A R FRR N BRI I AR 1EH % -

No impairment loss was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2022.

RBEZZ-_F+"A=+—HIEFEHB  LEREIEM
ERE

Our audit procedures were designed to assess and challenge the
assumptions, judgment and basis of the Group’s ECL model on
impairment assessment of trade receivables.
BRMBEABFENRSAT AT ERER EEEESRRHRIER
BT TERREEBIER AR A R B

We have challenged and assessed the reasonableness of
management’s assumptions, judgment and basis in determining
credit loss allowance on trade receivables by examining the
information used by management, including testing accuracy
of the historical default data, testing trade receivables past due
ageing analysis as at 31 December 2022, on a sample basis,
by comparing individual items in the analysis with the relevant
supporting documents and evaluating whether the historical loss
rates are appropriately adjusted for forward looking information
including both current and forecast general economic conditions.
BrEamsRl e EEERAMNER (B EEREOHIE
NERE AHER 2 _F+"B=+—HHNEZRKRANIE
I ERERES D A) > EEE D AT R BB B TH B e A RE 55 BR SO i 5T
FErLHGEEEXZ2EEMABREEN (BEERRBRANEBEE
o) FHBERE  KMER LRI EERE N EE E 5 UG
HEEBEEEHEFERNERR A RERNSE

We have also inspected cash received from debtors after year
end relating to trade receivables balance as at 31 December
2022, with the relevant supporting documents, on a sample
basis.

RS EHMEN _E__F+_A=+—BHEBEHANWNERH
REXREBE FERWARIBAGRNIES  ERAERMEEX o
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

56

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED PR ZEREREAE
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with audit committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Mr. Pang Wai Hung.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Wai Hung

Practising Certificate Number: P05044

Hong Kong
22 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

SR m A EME S W m R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_Z__F+A=+—HILLEE

2022 2021
—E-= -
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b= AR%FT AR®F T
Revenue KA 5 11,948,852 11,639,315
Cost of sales THE A (10,758,377) (10,687,104)
Gross profit ER 1,190,475 952,211
Distribution expenses DHEE (171,044) (164,934)
Administrative expenses THER (207,835) (192,013)
Research expenses R E R (324,108) (199,648)
Other net income HMEA 6 119,838 114,923
Operating profit iR 607,326 510,539
Finance income BMEWA 7 18,264 8,054
Finance expenses MEEA 8 (4,474) (7,105)
Profit before income tax FREFIS T AIF)E 9 621,116 511,488
Income tax expense Frigi sz 12 (125,684) (108,658)
Profit and total comprehensive income EEEMN B RGEWELEEE
for the year 495,432 402,830
Attributable to: IR R ISR, -
Owners of the Company KRBHEA A 352,009 345,597
Non-controlling interests JEVER IR 143,423 57,233
495,432 402,830
Earnings per share attributable to EATEEAELEERET
owners of the Company
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB) &EREARREEEZF (AR T) 13 0.0587 0.0577
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SHP AR R

As At 31 December 2022 B_ZT__HF+_F=+—H

2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% AREFT AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BREREE 16 1,892,095 2,004,318
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 436,292 447 167
Deposits for acquisition of property, UK EEY) 2~ BB R s BN
plant and equipment REBE 38,946 17,555
Equity investments RS 18 9,995 1,564
Deferred tax assets IRIERRIEE & 23 61,999 50,907
Total non-current assets EREEELEE 2,439,327 2,521,511
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ey 19 866,404 602,314
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A pE MR 20 589,550 594,357
Pledged bank deposits BIEHIRTTIER 21 207,582 -
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEY 21 1,002,985 1,000,977
Total current assets RBEEMSE 2,666,521 2,197,648
Total assets BEEE 5,105,848 4,719,159
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of EATEE AEGEES
the Company
Share capital &N 22 532,500 532,500
Other reserves HiE 481,536 408,274
Retained earnings REBEF] 2,581,054 2,337,189
3,595,090 3,277,963
Non-controlling interests JEERR G B 226,693 214,059
Total equity e 3,821,783 3,492,022
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B EINRR

As At 31 December 2022 W_Z__F+_B=+—H

2022 2021

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

[hE AR¥F AR#FT
LIABILITIES afi
Non-current liabilities ERBAER
Deferred income IEIEUA 26 244,722 259,411
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBE (& 23 73,410 70,554
Borrowings ERN 25 - 3,000
Total non-current liabilities EREIEELEEE 318,132 332,965
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR 27 369,149 416,302
Advances from customers BERB®R 28 205,166 269,909
Income tax payable FETFR1ZHR 54,522 75,606
Borrowings EEN 25 285,925 108,176
Dividends payable FETAR B 27,307 -
Employee housing deposits BITREEREE 29 23,864 23,741
Lease liabilities HEas 24 - 438
Total current liabilities MENBRLE%E 965,933 894,172
Total liabilities I=REER 1,284,065 1,227,137
Total equity and liabilities Kk aFEERE 5,105,848 4,719,159

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2023.

Tian Qixiang

The notes on pages 63 to 117 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

$ / \ n\l:lm

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZZEHE+ZHA=+—HIEFE

Non-
Share Special Capital Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
F324
2 RRGE B EEHE RERFH st B A
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AREBTT ARETRT ARETRT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETRT  ARETR
(note)
(W)
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ-%-F-H 532,500 27,080 56,196 295,945 2,065,586 2,977,307 156,826 3,134,133
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year ZKEF’ FIBRGANEEE - - - - 345,507 345,507 57,233 402,830
2020 final dividend ﬁﬁii RE 14 - - - - (44,941) (44,941) - (44,941)
Transfer to statutory reserves E?)\/im‘aﬁ - - - 29,053 (29,053) - - -
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZE_-F#+-A=+-Ak

ot St H A 532,500 27,080 56,196 324,998 2,337,189 3,277,963 214,059 3,492,022
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year ~ ZEEFBREFENEEE - - - - 352,009 352,009 143,423 495,432
2021 final dividend 7§7*¢$3ﬂ BE 14 - - - - (34,882) (34,882) - (34,882)
Dividend attributable to non-controlling interest ERERIERERERNRE - - - - - - (130,789) (130,789)
Transfer to statutory reserves EINya1 ] - - - 73,262 (73,262) - - -
At 31 December 2022 RZIBZZE+ZA=+-H 532,500 27,080 56,196 398,260 2,581,064 3,595,090 226,693 3,821,783

Note: MI5E -

Special reserve represents (a) the difference between the nominal value of the share capital
and share premium issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired upon the Group’s reorganisation; and (b) the difference
between the consideration paid by the direct subsidiary for the entire registered capital of the
indirect subsidiary and the amount of registered capital of the indirect subsidiary.

GRS (QARBMETRANEERRD EE
BEAEEBERFTWIBRINE QB MR A KRB
,ﬁnf‘f BEZBNERE ; Roo)BEZNE A S MEENB

ABE2HEMEAMHNAELABENB AT
MERZEERE-
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-ZE__"F+_F=+—HILFE

2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b= AR%FT AR®F T
Cash flows from operating activities RETENRERE
Cash generated from operations REEENRE 21(b) 458,037 1,154,179
Income tax paid EEMFTE (155,004) (48,196)
Interest paid BT (4,470) (7,234)
Interest received BF 8 18,264 8,054
Net cash generated from operating activities A2 EEHELENIR S FEE 316,827 1,106,803
Cash flows from investing activities KREZHNRERE
Payments for property, plant and equipment  #J% « i = K 2% E A =X (180,009) (377,294)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WY %~ B KRR HENE R
plant and equipment Bk (31,116) (17,555)
Acquisition of right-of-use assets WEERAEEE - (17,890)
Government grant received B U T #E B 67,077 19,293
Proceeds from disposals of property, REHEWE BEKREEHENFT
plant and equipment /R 10,161 2,071
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits BIEIRIEITER FE0) R (207,582) 4,353
Purchase of equity investments EERELE (8,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities KEEESEHANIREFRE (349,469) (387,022)
Cash flows from financing activities MEFHNRERE
Proceeds from borrowings EY=EEE ST IRSE A 309,188 306,334
Repayment of borrowings BEER (135,855) (321,147)
Dividends paid BAKRE (138,364) (44,941)
Lease payments ENR
— Capital elements — AR E D (438) (662)
— Interest elements —FIB &8 (4) (20)
Increase in employee housing deposits BTITREMRBEIEMN 123 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing ~ BYEEENFRS, (FRA) IR 358
activities 34,650 (60,436)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RENRREEEBYILNFEE 2,008 659,345
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BNRERREEEY 1,000,977 341,632
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December P+ _-_BE=+—HMNEEXES
ZEEY 21(a) 1,002,985 1,000,977
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHM BN

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H#Z_ZE__"F+_F=+—HIEFE

General information

China Starch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Cayman Islands Companies Law as an exempted
company with limited liability on 29 November 2006. Its ultimate holding
company is Merry Boom Group Limited (“Merry Boom”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”). The address of its
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual report. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) are the manufacture and sale of cornstarch, lysine, starch-based
sweetener, modified starch and its related products.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

21 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(*HKASSs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-ZE__"F+_F=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FEGHHEME (&
2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 IRNEE (B
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 EFHERKEZEE
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (a) 7K 5 [ AT FR AN B9 T 5T K
AAEETR
The following new amendments to standards have been UTFHMEAESTEN Z
effective for the accounting periods beginning on or after 1 Z__F#—A—HZH
January 2022: BRIAM G AR AL
Amendments to Property, plant and equipment BEE ME-HE
HKAS 16 “Proceeds before intended use” 2ER] R tE—

g6 TRER
25T  BAIR

PR1SAIE]
Amendments to Onerous contracts “Cost of fulfiling a BBE BEEN—
HKAS 37 contract” 2ER] ME17

8378 AW
Z185T BN
Amendments to Business combinations “Reference to BERUE EBEH-—
HKFRS 3 the conceptual framework” BE ME =
#ERE  ERZ
Kl AL 1|

EH)
Amendment to COVID-19-related rent concessions ERMHE %
HKFRS 16 beyond 30 June 2021 s NBE=t

R Bz#&H
£16%%  COVID-19
21851 MEEMEE

B

Amendments to Annual improvements to HKFRSs BERUTE RN

HKFRSs 2018 — 2020 cycle BE HREZER
Az BN
EH| FECE
—=EB
HzEFE

B¢

The adoption of these amendments does not have any RAZEEBTAGHAE

impact to the results and financial position of the Group. EENEERMBRR
SRR

64  CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED HERIIZERERAS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H#Z_ZE__"F+_F=+—HIEFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(®)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs which were issued before 31 December 2022 and
are pertinent to its operations but not yet effective:

Amendments to Classification of liabilities as current or
HKAS 1 non-current’

Amendments to Non-current liabilities with covenants?
HKAS 1

Amendments to Disclosure of accounting policies’

HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of accounting estimates’
HKAS 8

Amendments to Deferred tax related to assets and
HKAS 12 liabilities arising from a single

transaction’

Amendments to Sale or contribution of assets between
HKFRS 10 and HKAS an investor and its associate or joint
28 venture?

Amendments to Classification by the borrower of a term
Hong Kong loan that contains a repayment on

Interpretation 5 (2020)  demand clause?
presentation of financial
statements

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

The Group has not elected to early adopt these
pronouncements in 2022. These pronouncements are not
expected to have a material impact on the results or the
financial position of the Group.

TEFHHEHME (&
21 IREEE (&
211 BHBERBEEZEE (&)
®) 78 175 7 14 K 2 R B9 FF
BT RABNEST BB R R
ZEA
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwiill.

Segment reporting

The chief operating decision-maker is comprised of the executive
directors of the Company and the senior executive management of
the Group. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments. Information relating to
segment assets and liabilities is not disclosed as such information is
not regularly reported to the chief operating decision-maker.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the end of the reporting period; and

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions).

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are
taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2

TEFHHEHME (&
25 HpEERE
(a) ERZEHEK
HAREME BB
WMEPVBEHUZER

(b)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

EBFENIECER
BHEE (TMEEE))
StE - A BEwEAT U
ARB29) ARBRE
EENEEBERER
i

X G RAEEH
HINERZZ 5 BN
EMGtEREAMGEDSR
ERNEXRERINE
B -AEBRILERZ K
BEKBERBEINEG
SHENEBREEREGRE
T ZE 2 B9 9 BB U 2 e 65
BB eSS

EHRE
FEFEETRAEER (2
BIEERASERCE
ERMNER) NIEER
HAENN2®REN  HE
ERMBRTAROT
FRARMBEWRENE

0) BB RPR
JEEREER
HF SR
HEXME &

(i) B IRBEFSI U
AK R F 13
PERILE > BRIF
I FHERTE
WA B BEHE R
BRIA AL 5 H B E
HREXNRT
& BEIRER
o WA R B
A3 5 B H#6Y
RS

EatiRE R BEEH
EBEREEENESR
=8 I AR MRS IR
MmN BRENHERS
BN R 5 AR
EREENIBEAESD
AEE RSN —
B

—EooEER Gf



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

aHPHERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-ZE__"F+_F=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than those under construction,
are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment loss.
Property, plant and equipment under construction for production or
administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Property, plant
and equipment under construction is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are

ready for their intended use.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over

the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
Other machinery

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other

net income’ in profit or loss.

68  CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Financial instruments

Financial assets are classified into three principal categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL").

An investment in equity securities, including listed and unlisted, is
measured at FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purpose and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes
an irrevocable election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or
FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out note 2.22.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers are initially
measured in accordance with revenue recognition policy (note 2.21).
Derivative financial instrument is measured at FVPL (note 2.10).
All other recognised financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits)
of the Group are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities, such as trade and other payables (note 2.15),
dividends payable, borrowings (note 2.16), lease liabilities (note 2.24)
and employee housing deposits, are measured at amortised cost.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit risk and impairment of financial assets

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost, such as
trade and other receivables, are subject to the Group’s expected
credit loss (the “ECL”) model. While cash and cash equivalents
and pledged bank deposits are also subject to the impairment
review, the identified loss allowance was immaterial. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1(b) set out the details how
the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.

Financial assets measured at fair value, such as futures contracts, are
not subject to ECL assessment.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
to provide loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs for
its financial assets at initial recognition and through its life of the
asset. A provision matrix is determined based on historical overdue
pattern, shared risk characteristics, probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At each
reporting date the above parameters are updated.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

The following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

° failure to make payments on their contractually due dates;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial
asset’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial,
market or economic conditions that are expected to cause

a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9

2.10

Credit risk and impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 90 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis, the financial assets are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

Any change in the expected credit loss amount is recognised as an
impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss in profit or loss.

The gross carrying amount of financial assets (and the related
impairment allowances) is normally written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the asset becomes 365 days past due or
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

For other receivables, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, such as futures, are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, except where the derivatives
qualify for hedging accounting, in which case recognition of any
resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being
hedged.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value of inventories is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less loss allowance (note 2.9).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amount of cash which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, with original maturity of three
months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method.

RENBRMIERAIRAR

2

FEGHBRBE (&

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

=&
FELM AR PJETE FEMED
BURE AR M AZM#E T3
FERE AR RERBIRA
BERME -BEEF T -HiE
BERAREMEEBERE (B
RIEBEEEN) - FEZAIER
BEDREBEBBREPOMGE
BB REMGEHIHERBMNE-

B 5 R EL{th FE TR
AEBRNAREFRERSAER
B SRS UK o i LB B HA S AT A
BUR DR RERE B
BBV AN B AR

FE W R o AR B R R S 8 R
FREBRERTR (F532.9)

RERREEEN
REMFSEEMEBERTETF
BIRE EHERUKRREIAAE
BoZERUAT DJEREBIRS
ENRETTREEELIERT
MEEREREERE -

iR

ZEkyEs R HEITIR
HERESEAFNEEMAR
T A5 7 PRAS AR RL (F0 Bk
HRIA) °

B 5 R E MR
BERNRA/NEBEEBBRS
) LR R B E A SRS T A
MEVEAE o 15 B 7 e H A A A7
R—FHZAINEFNERTE
EEBAR (HRBEER) 58 8
WoERREBE R GRLEER
BamlELEy]-

B REMEARIZ AT EDNS
R HERABRANRERE
A AFTE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AP ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H#Z_ZE__"F+_F=+—HIEFE

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.16

2.18

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Certain borrowings are classified as current liability unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax
asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is also
provided on temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Short-term employee benefits and pension
obligations

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Short-term employee benefits and pension
obligations (Continued)

The Group sponsors various defined contribution plans for
its employees in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
These plans are organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments based on certain percentage of the
relevant employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all existing and future retired
employees under these plans and the Group has no further
constructive obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions made.

The Group has also sponsored a defined contribution scheme
which is managed by an approved trustee registered under
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Ordinance”) for its employees in Hong Kong. Both the Group
and its employees in Hong Kong are required to contribute
a maximum of 5% of each individual’s relevant income or a
limited amount as prescribed by the MPF Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group and independently administered.

Contributions made to the above respective defined
contribution pension plans are expenses as incurred. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in future payment is available.

There is no forfeited contributions that may be used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contribution.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities of
bonus plan are expected to be settled within twelve months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.19

2.20

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Share-based compensation
The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets) and including that of non-vesting
conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to vest. At the reporting date, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of upstream products and fermented and
downstream products is recognised when goods are delivered
to the customers, which is taken to be the point in time when
the Group transfers control over the products to the customers.
Revenue excludes value added taxes or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of sales return, if any. The Group does not expect to have
any contract where the period between the transfer of goods to the
customer and the payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
result, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the

time value of money.

The Group does not expect to have any contract asset which
represents the Group’s rights to consideration in exchange of goods
that delivered to the customer is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the

passage of time is required before payment is due.

Advances from customers are contract liabilities which represent the
Group’s obligation to render goods to customer for which the Group

has received consideration from the customers.

The Group also does not expect to have any incremental cost
to obtain a contract with a customer. Costs that will be incurred
regardless of whether the contract is obtained are expensed as they

incurred.

2.22 Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the

shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.23

2.24

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

Leases

A lessee is required to recognise almost all leases on the statement of
financial position which will reflect their “right-of-use” for a period of
time and their associated liability for payments.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on
a present value basis. Lease liabilities are measured at the present
value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivables

° variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate

o amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees

° the exercise price of purchase option if it is reasonably certain

to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease reflecting the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, or the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of initial measurement of lease liabilities

o any lease payment made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received

o any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the

lease term on a straight-line basis.

There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low-value items. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less at the commencement date. Low-value items included
[T-equipment and small items of office furniture. Payments associated
with short-term leases and leases of low value items are recognised

on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and

the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs

that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the

related assets.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.26 Research and development expenditure

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design and testing
of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets

when all of the following criteria are fulfilled:

(@) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so

that it will be available for use or sale;

(b) management intends to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

(c) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate

probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the intangible asset are
available; and

(4] the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its

development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period. Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over its useful life, not exceeding

five years.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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3

Financial instruments

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(a) Market risk
() Foreign exchange risk
The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence, exposures
to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Approximately
3.5% (2021: 7.1%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the entities of the Group.

The operating subsidiaries of the Group mainly
operate in the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated in RMB. In addition, most of the
Group'’s liabilities are denominated in RMB. Therefore,
the management considers the Group is not exposed
to significant foreign exchange risk.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

3.1

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a

(i)

(i)

Corn kernel price risk

Corn kernels are the major raw materials of the
Group and they are subject to price changes in
the commodity market. During the year, the Group
did not use any commodity futures to control the
exposure of the Group to price fluctuations of corn
kernel. The Group will consider the production
schedule and make bulk purchases from spot market
when the market price of corn kernel is considered as
low.

Cornstarch price risk

Cornstarch is one of the major products of the
Group and it is subject to price changes in the
commodity market. A cornstarch manufacturer, as
a seller, holding a put position of cornstarch futures
contract would not make any profit if the cornstarch
market is prosperity. In other words, short-selling
cornstarch futures during the price-up period would
unnecessarily increase the exposure of price risk.
The management would use futures to control the
exposure of price risk when the market is extreme
volatile or in recession.
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3

Financial instruments (Continuea)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
ad hoc short term borrowings or discount on bank
acceptance bills carried at variable rates, which
exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group’s fixed rate borrowings expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. The management
considers the fair value interest rate risk is
insignificant as most of the fixed rate borrowings is
less than 12 months.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and pledged bank deposits included in the
consolidated statement of financial position which represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
its financial assets. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

To manage the risk arising from pledged bank deposits, the
Group only transacts with reputable banks which are high-
credit-quality financial institutions. There has no recent history
of default in relation to these financial institutions. The credit
risk on bank acceptance bills is monitored closely by the
management who will assess the reputation of the customer’s
issuing bank and the risk of recoverability. The ECL on all
bank deposits and bank acceptance bills is close to zero.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

3.1

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group has credit policy to monitor
the credit risk. In general, the credit record and credit period
for each customer are regularly assessed, based on the
customer’s financial condition, historical payment record and
other factors such as current market condition.

For other receivables, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The Group has
assessed whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group will measure the
loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.
The management believes that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balances of other
receivables and the ECL is close to zero.

The Group applies the simplified approach, which permits the
use of the lifetime ECL provision for all trade receivables from
third parties and related parties.

The Group categories trade or other receivables for write
off when a customer or debtor fails to make contractual
payments. Where trade or other receivables have been
written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where
recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

RENBRMIERAIRAR

3

EWMTIA &

3.1

MBERARER ()
(b) EFEmEE &)

PMEZERRMES > £&
HERTTHRREREES
Rke—fFms8—%4
ERNEELBKESR
HAMRYE E HAST A > SPME TS
ERERNYBRI B
FfaLsREMEAR
MBTHRERE -

SEMBEWRMS > B1E
BEeEERNBEEELHE
B3 1 45 By ¥ HL A FE 1R
ML K ERESL
BRR ST BB 5T o A&
EECHEBNL R
UREERBRAEDEE
1Bhn-HEERBREEIE
o A s BRI B EFE
FHNEMEEREAM
FTZERNEREE
BRI EREREA T
[E58 7 A E Ry E Ath &
BRREEREEER
ENERGEERRE MHE
FREEERBLTE-

REERBBLZE 5T
HREFE=HKEER
BIFR A B 5 I W 8 A
BEFEFHRANES
BERHE-

AEER-—RZERAE
BABEZNEOMIE
By @i E 7 EMBEUR
ROBRMEE - BEH
H B R IS B - A
EEGEBRIBRFITT
FHUES KR A E
WCRR i B ZH [B] Ui > [B1UR
AR R PSS o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B EREMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H#Z_ZE__"F+_F=+—HIEFE

3 Financial instruments (Continuea)

(b)

3 ERMTH#E
3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 WHHEEKER (&
Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERE (&
The following tables provide information about the Group's TREHBHEAAEER
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at TE T TERIE " —
31 December 2022 and 2021: E+A=+—HmE
SEBEREHNEER
W TREAE BB EER
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHAESIEEE =R IRE4EE EEiER A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFTT AR®BTT
2022 —EZF
Current (not past due) BRER (GRHR) ~0% 145,594 -
1-60 days past due AHE—ER+H 0.50% - -
61-90 days past due BHSR+—Z2h1H 1.50% - -
More than 365 days past due AEBB =5/ x1tHH 100.00% - -
145,594 -
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHAESEEE SR IREAEE BigiEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARBTT
2021 BT
Current (not past due) BRER (REHR) ~ 0% 147,247 -
1-60 days past due mH—=x+H 0.50% 2 -
61-90 days past due wHSN+—=hN+H 1.50% - -
More than 365 days past due BHBB="/TEH 100.00% - -
147,249 -

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past two years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
respect of the trade and other receivables, with exposures
spread over a number of debtors and customers.
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Financial instruments (Continued) 3 ERMI A #E
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HBEKBERR @)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) TEELRE
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash REBEFEEEE B
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance EREEEBYREE
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations ERERR/TEMNKTE
in cash flows. In addition, the Group also maintains sufficient UAREENKLEHBE
banking facilities to meet its future payment requirements. REBREEREEHHN
o IS REE I
RRANRITEERM
HARRATRFTTE ©
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into TRAXEETHEE
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period ZHEMBREAIBESEN
at the reporting dates to the contractual maturity dates. D DB ERRSEH
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BEANIBEENREEG
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payment A TRIBENEER
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on SRR FERE (B
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the EBBEEOFES W5
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: FEAE) RREHERN
BUHAF] X 5t B0 F] B AT
) KA EE O] BEW E K
BRHNmREHS
Carrying
Within Between Between amount
1 year 1-2years 2-5years Total liabilities
—ENR —FEmE REERE st IREEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR AREFR ARBTR ARBFR
2022 k- - 3
Trade and other payables ~ EB57 REMEMT 356,685 - - 356,685 356,685
Borrowings e 286,419 - - 286,419 285,925
Dividends payable EfTIRE 27,307 - - 27,307 27,307
Employee housing deposits ELEERES 23,864 - - 23,864 23,864
694,275 - - 694,275 693,781
2021 ZTI-F
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER 398,230 - - 398,230 398,230
Borrowings B 111,841 3,006 - 114,847 111,176
Employee housing deposits ETEERES 28,741 - - 28,741 23,741
Lease liabilities HEAR 442 - - 442 438
534,254 3,006 - 537,260 533,585

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H#Z_ZE__"F+_F=+—HIEFE

3 Financial instruments (Continuea)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce the cost
of capital. The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is determined by total borrowings
to total assets of the Group. During 2022, the Group’s capital
management strategy, which was unchanged from prior year, was
to maintain a lower level of gearing ratio in order to cope with

unexpected change in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to

externally imposed capital requirement.

3

TWMIA @&

3.2

BEAREE
FEEEERERANERAREL
EEAFESENET UBR
RRHEKRTAEMERITE
AREAB B THSABAEE
RN REBMOERERRE
TANRE£BE - AKRREROE
RBIIHRREEEE #EU
BIRE ® A - AEBIRIEEIR
bR REARGIE - BIREER
NEBBNBREERUEERE
BEE-RZE__F -Kx&£E2
EAETRRRAERFRENER
Eb 3 LU 475 R O B 38 8
B> ARAKISEEFHEF -

KABHEERWE ARG HA
BTERIIEEREREZR

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Total borrowings 4B %R 285,925 111,176
Total assets EEME 5,105,848 4,719,159
Gearing ratio B =R 5.6% 2.4%
3.3  Financial value measurement 3.3 HMBEEHE

Fair value measurements are categorised into three different levels
based on the degree to which the inputs used to arrive at the fair
value of the assets and liabilities are observable and unobservable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its

entirety, as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets (for example: the Stock Exchange or other
recognised commodity market) for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date. The prices of futures
quoted in a recognised commodity market are example of

Level 1 inputs.

- Level 2 inputs are those, other than quoted prices included in
Level 1 that are observable either directly or indirectly.

ATEFBREBEEREEKREE
AT EPMRANBAREES
RREBREERATENE
NMASBEEERNEZ N
BR=ETRRR W

— FE—RBABESER
HEEREERFERN
PERRT S (U0 © AT
HEMARBERTEH) B
HE CREFE) AR
AT ENHERER
B IRBAEE-

— BE_RBAREBESTE
B AB—HRHREDN
ERNBEERENG
AR -
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Financial instruments (Continued)

3.3

Financial value measurement (Continued)

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs. The Group generally
classifies assets or liabilities as Level 3 when their fair value
is determined using unobservable inputs of the assets or
liabilities. This would include latest financial statements. The
investment in unlisted equity, after considering its business
model, fall into this category and its fair value is measured on
a recurring basis.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of the
reporting period.

There is no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Valuation on inventories

The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving items. The management estimates the
net realisable value for such finished goods, work-in-progress and
raw materials primarily on the estimated future selling price and
market conditions. Where the estimates of the net realisable value
are less than expected, a material allowance may arise. The Group
reassesses these estimates regularly. At 31 December 2022, no
impairment loss of inventories is recognised.

RENBRMIERAIRAR
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4

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Useful lives and estimated impairment of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will adjust the depreciation charge where useful
lives are different to that of previously estimated, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of property,
plant and equipment is estimated using the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposals and its value-in-use. If the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable
amount. Such impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade receivables
by assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of reporting period. Where the estimation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will affect the
carrying amounts of trade receivables and thus the impairment loss
in the period in which such estimate is changed. The Group keeps
assessing the expected credit loss of trade receivables during their
expected lives.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Revenue and segment information
The Group’s operating segments are as follows:

Upstream products — the manufacture and sale of cornstarch
and ancillary corn-refined products

Fermented and — the manufacture and sale of lysine,
downstream products starch-based sweetener, modified starch
and other products

The operating segments are identified in accordance with the economic
similarity and distinction of our products. For the purpose of assessing
segment performance and allocating resources between segments, the chief
operating decision-maker assesses and monitors the segment revenues,
margins and results attributable to each reportable segment. Inter-segment
sales or provision of materials to other segments is not measured.

Interest income and expense are not included in the result for each operating
segment as these are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to
reportable segments.

Unallocated income and expenses mainly consist of certain government
grants and corporate costs respectively which cannot be allocated to
individual segments.

Sales between segments are charged at cost or with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market
prices. The revenue from external parties reported to the management is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED PR ZEREREAE
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5 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 5 WARDEER (&

Fermented

and

Upstream downstream
products products Unallocated Total

BEER

EiER TiEm R =k

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AER%¥Tr ARBTT AR®TRT

2022 —E-C

Sales to external customers BN RE R IHE 8,705,998 3,242,854 - 11,948,852
Inter-segment sales 7 EB R 1,485,860 - - 1,485,860
Reportable segment profit AR & D EFHE 230,169 396,677 - 626,846
Unallocated income ERBEUA 45,065
Unallocated expenses Epalivi b (64,585)
Finance income BE WA 18,264
Finance expenses i & A (4,474)
Profit before income tax FREF1SR IS 621,116
Other segment information: HithnatER -

Depreciation TE 106,948 99,072 78,784 284,804
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Revenue and segment information (Continued)

5 WARDERER (&

Fermented
and
Upstream  downstream
products products Unallocated Total
BEKR
ERES T E G i &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AREBTT AREBTT ARBTT
2021 =T £
Sales to external customers AN REFIHE 8,576,482 3,062,833 - 11,639,315
Inter-segment sales DEPREHE 220,091 - - 220,091
Reportable segment profit AIERE D EFE 442,997 333,072 - 776,069
Unallocated income KA A 56,280
Unallocated expenses RO (321,810)
Finance income MEUA 8,054
Finance expenses MEE A (7,105)
Profit before income tax BREAS IR AIFE 511,488
Other segment information: Hitho &R -
Depreciation e 90,331 90,096 78,823 259,250

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, all sources of revenue

are recognised at a point in time.

Based on the place of the operation of external customers, revenue
attributed to the PRC and other countries is RMB11,493,571,000 and
RMB455,281,000 (2021: RMB10,810,954,000 and RMB828,361,000)

respectively.

The Group’s assets, liabilities and capital expenditures are predominately
attributable to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. Therefore, no
analysis by geographical regions is presented.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H#Z_ZE__"F+_F=+—HIEFE

6 Other net income 6 HthBWA

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTT
Amortisation of government grants (note 26) BT Bh Ay 8 (M 5226) 81,766 62,925
Gain on sale of scrap material SHERER 2 W am 21,841 17,317
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment H €& ¥ 2 « i = K 5% #5 RO % 9,403 1,075
Written off of property, plant and equipment WEEYZE BB R (208) (3,091)
Sewage treatment 5K BRI 2,875 1,224
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) ERUE, (518) 48 1,538 (1,958)
Government grants (note) B Eeh (i 5E) 1,185 36,496
Gain on futures AE W= 601 333
Others H1th 837 602
119,838 114,923

Note: 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the government grants mainly represented
subsidies of approximately RMB1,185,000 from the local governments for supporting
businesses. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the government grants mainly
represented a subsidy of approximately RMB12,594,000 and RMB23,310,000 from
local governments for supporting business development and research activities.

The government grants were granted at the discretion of the government and
were not recurring in nature.

HE_E - "HF+_A=Z+—HIEEE K
B =B A BN A F e EMmREN
BB ARME1,185,000cc HE— T - —4
+ZA=+—BILEE BUFHEEEH
FHRALFEEEERMEESMEML
BB BN BIAI AR 12,594,000 R AR
23,310,0007G °

B RFRIB T e AT B0 8 L » 3t A JEAT 3
M

7 Finance income 7 BB U A
2022 2021
—E=-Z B4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF AREFT

Interest income on MTIEENH EWA

- Bank deposits —IRITER 18,095 7,142
- Undue bank acceptance bills —REHPRITER R R 169 912
18,264 8,054
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-ZE__"F+_F=+—HILFE
8 Finance expenses 8 MEEA
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARBFT
Interest on TFEENHE

- Borrowings — &= 3,395 3,505

— Discounted bills receivables — BRI EZ 1,075 3,580

— Lease liabilities (note 24) —HEaE& (Er24) 4 20

4,474 7,105
9 Profit before income tax 9 PRETIS IR AT F)E

The major expenses of the Group are as follows: AEENFTERZWT
2022 2021
- BT —fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF ARBFT
Cost of inventories FERK 10,555,375 10,747,155
Salaries, wages and other benefits e - ITEREMER 251,116 215,122
Pension scheme contributions BB EIHER 15,063 14,348

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M2 BB s BT E (MP5E16)

(note 16) 273,929 248,296
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 17) EREEEITE (sE17) 10,875 10,954
Research expenses (note) zEA (s 324,108 199,648
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B4 B #r B

— Audit service — B 2R 1,054 785

— Non-audit service —IEBE LIRS 195 245
Note: MIE -

Research expenses include cost of inventories, staff costs and depreciation, which
are included in the above respective expenses, in the Research and Development

Department of the Group.

94  CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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10

Benefits and interests of directors 10 EFHNEMKRER
Details of directors’ emoluments of the Company are set out below: RABIEENFHIFBEHRINWT :
Pension
scheme
Fees Salaries contributions Total
ik e RAEHIMR &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®ETFR ARBEFT ARBFT
2022 ot Jonken
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Tian Qixiang HE#EE - 480 - 480
Mr. Gao Shijun BtELE - 450 92 542
Mr. Liu Xianggang AREEE - 410 23 433
Mr. Yu Yingquan FREEE - 410 - 410
Independent non-executive directors: BIFRTES !
Professor Hua Qiang TERHIR 50 - - 50
Mr. Sun Mingdao RAERYE 50 - - 50
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REERE 94 - - 94
Total Aast 194 1,750 115 2,059
2021 “ET-F
Executive directors: HTES !
Mr. Tian Qixiang HERLE - 480 - 480
Mr. Gao Shijun StELE - 450 85 535
Mr. Liu Xianggang ARBIEE - 410 85 495
Mr. Yu Yingquan FHREE - 410 - 410
Independent non-executive directors: BIFRITES !
Professor Hua Qiang TER#E 50 - - 50
Mr. Sun Mingdao BBEELE 50 - - 50
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REHELE 91 - - 91
Total a5t 191 1,750 170 2,111
For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the retirement benefits BHE_Z-__FERrR-ZE”Z—F+ZA8
paid to Mr. Gao Shijun and Mr. Liu Xianggang are related to their services as a =t+—HIEFE et ELAERIRAE
director of the Company and its subsidiaries. EESZNWEREN AR FEEIAR
B R EM B AT EEARR
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EC_FFWR 95
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Individuals with highest emoluments 11

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three (2021:
three) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis in note 10. The emoluments of the remaining two (2021: two)

individual was as follows:

REmAL

rEBIARSHATHR =5 (ZF
TR I ZR) AT ABNES REFM
ERWEHIOND 2T B Tms (TF

T—F I Wm) ARSI T

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT AE®EF T

Salaries e 1,477 1,328
Pension scheme contributions BT EIFR 27 30
1,504 1,358

The emoluments paid to the above individuals fell within the following bands:

MRU TRz B A2 2B

Number of individuals

ATEE
2022 2021
- BT —F
Nil — HK$1,000,000 2 %1,000,0007 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 £ 1,500,000 75 1 1
Income tax expense 12 FriSMiZ
2022 2021
== —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARBFT
Current income tax BERPR R
- PRC Enterprises Income Tax (‘EIT”) —FhE B EMRE
(TEZEFR1STR) 139,076 90,720
— Over-provision in prior years — B FEEBREEE (5,156) (7,763)
— Other PRC withholding tax —HMPEENR - 135
Deferred tax (note 23) FEIEFRIE (F45E23) (8,236) 25,566
125,684 108,658

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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12

Income tax expense (Continued)

The Group’s major business is in the PRC. Under the law of the PRC on
EIT and its Implementation Regulation, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% for both years, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is
recognised as high technology enterprise is entitled to enjoy a preferential EIT
rate of 15% (2021:15%).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group entities’
profit neither arose in nor was derived from Hong Kong during both years.

Pursuant to the law of the PRC on EIT and its Implementation Regulation,
non-PRC resident enterprises are levied withholding tax at 10% (unless
reduced by tax treaties/arrangements) on dividends receivable from PRC
enterprises for profits earned since 1 January 2008. The Group adopted the
10% withholding tax rate for PRC withholding tax purposes during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
income tax as follows:

12

FRGIZH (@)

RNEEZ FEEBHRPEIET - RIBEFE
CEMBRIERAEEHMA > FEKNE
AERMEFEEZRE525% o AL
E—BERTASEMEENKWEBAS
BRIN ZABRIEB15% (ZEZ—4F ¢
15%) MEBELEMBERE-

HRAEENEENMEFEANLEE
EEELRNENAE KA EARSENE
TRIEL R -

RIBEPEIEEFSREREETAR > S
FHEERCERKFTRCXE-ZS
NEFE—FB—HEMMERABEELNRS
0% EHUTRID R (BRIEIR U
E/BHTTHBENRE) - RBEEZR
T THFRIBZ—F+ZB=+—HLt
FE AEEDHRPREBINREMI0%B9
BN

AF E PSR S ] RS 8 Al F)F
HERWT :

2022 2021

—E-= =

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTF T AREFT

Profit before income tax FRETSM AT HE 621,116 511,488
Notional tax on profit before income tax at YRS RAI A BLUERAREHE

applicable rates Z BRERIE 154,237 126,326

Tax effects of THEENRBEE

— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes —AEMRFEE 752 892

— Income not subject to tax —BAEFHRIA (192) (143)

— Over-provision in prior years — B FEBIERE (5,156) (7,763)

— Tax deduction in the PRC —hERIER %= (26,588) (17,789)

- PRC dividend withholding tax (note 23(a)) —hERE EFEI0R (HI5E23(a)) 2,631 7,000

— Other PRC withholding tax —HhhEEINR - 135

125,684 108,658
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB ERERMNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-ZE__"F+_F=+—HILFE

13

14

98

Earnings per share 13

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

T RBER ABEFE
ANRBTIT)
BEITEERINETIH (TR)

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
(RMB’000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue (thousands)

BRkE

KRB EANEEBREREFTHIZU
TEEEE

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 were the same because there was no dilutive potential
ordinary share.

Dividends 14

Dividends payable to shareholders attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year:

2021 final dividend of HKO0.69 cents per share
(2020: HK0.90 cents) (ZEZZ 4 1 0.907E1D)

ZEZ—FRPARESR0.69E

2022 2021
=B B
352,009 345,597
5,994,132 5,994,132
HREBEE S R _F_—F+=
A=+—HLEEEHNESBENENE
EEER WEREARBERTER-
;35

BEMBEERG RAFEERRIET X
THRECRERS

2022 2021
—E-CHF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F ARBTFT
34,882 44,941

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the directors of the Company proposed
a final dividend of HKO0.69 cents (2021: HK0.69 cents) per share, amounting
to HK$41,360,000 (2021: HK$41,360,000). The final dividend proposed after
the end of the reporting period is subject to approval by shareholders in the
forthcoming general meeting of the Company and has not been recognised
as a liability as at 31 December 2022.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED PR ZEREREAE

R_E__F+_A=+—H% ' £AAF
EERFRERPREER0.69EM (=
T —14F 1 0.69781L) > & 841,360,000
Bt (ZEZ—H 1 41,360,000 7T) ° 7
TECCHF+A=+—H RHRERK
BRBRENRBREBAFTRERALR
BIEERREAG AR AEMESE A
WRERABBE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS ER AR I T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HEZE_ZT__F+_HA=+—HIEEE

15

Subsidiaries 15

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company has the following interests
in its subsidiaries. The kind of legal entity of these subsidiaries is limited
liability company. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated:

Place of
incorporation
Name of company and business Principal activities
R SRR R AR E S B TBEH
Directly held: E#RR:
Sourcestar Worldwide Inc. BVI, Hong Kong Investment holding
Sourcestar Worldwide Inc. HERAREE B8 RERR
China Starch Group Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
TERHERRRAT &E REZER
Indirectly held: MERA:
Shandong Shouguang Juneng Golden PRC Manufacturing and sale of cornstarch, lysine and related
Corn Development Co., Ltd* products
(“Golden Corn”)
LRBAEEEERRE FE LERBELRERN BEBERERER
BRAR (MEK)
Shouguang Golden Far East Modified PRC Research, development, manufacture, and sales of
Starch Company Limited* modified starch, cornstarch, glucose, maltose, dextrin,
animal feed additives, food-grade enzymes, biobased
materials, and related products
BREERZURNERAT FE e £EREEZLRN TARN FERE
12 #HE BB RLRIED R RAREE ENEEY
BRIEBER
Linging Deneng Golden Corn Bio Limited ~ PRC Manufacturing and sale of cornstarch, starch-based
sweetener and related products
BEEEEERENERAT H LERSBETRRN RDBREHER
Shouguang Golden Corn Biotechnology PRC Research, development, manufacture and sales of
Limited* (“Golden Corn Biotech”) starch, food additives, feeds, amion acids and related
products
SREEREMBEARAT FE e £ ERBFE RN RYIANA B S EERA
(EEREMHE) MER
Shouguang Juneng Musashino PRC Research, development, production and sale of lactate
Biotechnology Co., Ltd* and other related products.
("Juneng Musashino”)
%%Emﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂ&ﬁ RAE HE e L ERBEAREREMERER
(BERES)

* English transliteration is for identification only.
Note:

Juneng Musashino was incorporated in August 2020. In light of the development of
new COVID-19 variants, both shareholders of Juneng Musashino unanimously agreed
to postpone registered capital contribution schedule. As at 31 December 2022, Golden
Corn provided approximately RMB14,850,000 (2021: RMB5,000,000) to Juneng
Musashino as its working capital.

b=

M- -ER-B-—E+7A
=+—8 FRFETARERBAT S
p - S EA DN AERBERS
ERAT - BBEEN FITE 2RI
A EER

Issued share

capital/registered Interest held
capital by the Group
BRTRE/HMES FEEMEEED
US$240 100%
240ETT

HK$1 100%
1HT

RMB700,000,000 100%
A E#700,000,0007%

US$13,850,000 100%
13,850,000%7¢

RMB200,000,000 91%
B #200,000,00070

RMB200,000,000 55%
A E#200,000,0007%

Note 75%
Lk

Y OEXGEREMRBER -

=
i

EREFN S ZTF/\BFMmir-=E
EACOVID19¥EE’J EEHMMWERE ERERE
E%EﬁHy%—:iﬂ%f$&@uiﬂﬂ§zlx,1§u+§uo
RIE__F+-_A=+—RH'&EKBE
BER B B IR AR 14,850,000t (Z =
_—¢ AER#5,000,0007T) (EAHEEE
Fo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB ERERMNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-ZE__"F+_F=+—HILFE

15  Subsidiaries (Continued) 15

The following table lists out the information relating to Golden Corn Biotech,
the only subsidiary of the Group which has material non—-controlling interest
(“NCI”). The summarised financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

NCI percentage JEERRRG R ER B OLE
Current assets MENE E

Non-current assets ERBEE

Current liabilities ViE=KE

Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Net assets BERE

Carrying amount of NCI JEERR G R R REE
Revenue WA

Profit for the year KEEFE

Total comprehensive income REWmAREE

Profit allocated to NCI PDEEFERRKRRERNFE
Dividend declared to NCI SIRTIEERRREERNRE
Cash flows from operating activities REKLEEHNRERE
Cash flows from investing activities REREGFHNRERE
Cash flows from financing activities REMREEHNRERE

MEBAE (&

TRV EEMEAEEE—ERERFE
Iepes i (RERRRED ) B A
Bl FOREMRRINER - LIT 25898
BERMEERS AEAREREHEA
LNkl

2022 2021
—s-= s
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFT AE®EF T
45% 45%
406,375 284,951
1,163,969 1,252,147
(1,116,544) (1,167,629)
(32,555) (34,921)
421,245 334,548
189,560 150,547
2,526,085 3,222,306
300,487 113,293
300,487 113,293
135,219 50,082
(96,206) -
159,768 189,429
(237,727) (154,276)
57,240 -

10() CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI AIRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B EREMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H#Z_ZE__"F+_F=+—HIEFE

16  Property, plant and equipment 16 YE -BERRZE
Plant and
equipment
Plant and Motor Other under
Buildings machinery vehicles machinery construction Total
HERER
BF RBERHESR AE Hithi ez &t &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFT AREFR ARETR ARETx ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2021 |t Sy SR =
Cost D% 887,684 2,059,834 27,085 108,735 157,728 3,241,066
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  EstFERAEE (188,357) (954,717) (18,386) (71,945) - (1,233,405)
Net book value RESE 699,327 1,105,117 8,699 36,790 167,728 2,007,661
Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ”-%
+ZB=+—HLEE
Net book value at 1 January 2021 RIZEZ-5—F—HK
REFE 699,327 1,105,117 8,699 36,790 167,728 2,007,661
Additions HE 455 9,403 2,796 2,771 233,615 249,040
Transfers upon completion SER R E R 6,335 203,817 - 1,010 (211,162) -
Disposals/written-off HE /M - (3,679) - (408) - (4,087)
Depreciation charge for the year FENEER (40,622) (194,923) (3,793) (8,958) - (248,296)
Reclassification EEibar] - 20,968 - (20,968) - -
Net book value at 31 December 2021 RZIBZ—H+ZA=+—H
NEREZE 665,495 1,140,703 7,702 10,237 180,181 2,004,318
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 WZZZ—%F+ZA=+—H
k=ZE--%-F—-H
Cost D% 886,767 2,324,307 33,046 44,683 180,181 3,468,984
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  EHFERAEE (221,272) (1,183,604 (25,344) (34,446) - (1,464,666)
Net book value RESE 665,495 1,140,703 7,702 10,237 180,181 2,004,318
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z-__£+-A=+-AH
LEE
Net book value at 1 January 2022 RIZEZZH—-HF—H
HEREFE 665,495 1,140,708 7,702 10,237 180,181 2,004,318
Additions HE - 2,929 3,803 1,893 163,566 162,191
Transfers upon completion SRR 58,565 184,814 - 438 (243,817 -
Disposals/written-off HE /88 (261) (224) - - - (485)
Depreciation charge for the year FEWEER (47,940) (216,802) (4,088) (6,099) - (273,929)
Net book value at 31 December 2022 RIBZZH+°A=+-H
NEEEE 675,859 1,111,420 7,417 7,469 89,930 1,892,095
At 31 December 2022 RZE__&+_A=+—-H
Cost D% 944,655 2,499,488 33,767 45,843 89,930 3,613,683
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  EtFERAEE (268,796)  (1,388,068) (26,350) (38,374) - (1,721,588)
Net book value RESE 675,859 1,111,420 7,417 7,469 89,930 1,892,095
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

aHPHERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-ZE__"F+_F=+—HILFE

17  Right-of-use assets 17 (FRAEEE
The amount in respect of leases are as follows: ESZEWNT .
Land
use right Properties Total
Tt fE A LY st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AR®BTT AR®TT
Net book value at 1 January 2021 -2 —F—H—H
HEREFE 428,647 1,183 429,830
Acquisition for the year R E RS 28,291 - 28,291
Depreciation charge for the year FEITEER (10,278) (676) (10,954)
Net book value at 31 December 2021 RIE_—F+"A=+—HRK
and 1 January 2022 “EI2F—A—HB®
REFE 446,660 507 447,167
Depreciation charge for the year FEEFEER (10,368) (507) (10,875)
Net book value at 31 December 2022 RIE2E-_“H#+"B=+—H
HEREFE 436,292 - 436,292

The interests of land use right are located in the PRC.

1()2 CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B EREMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H#Z_ZE__"F+_F=+—HIEFE

18  Equity investments 18
Financial asset at FVPL BATFEFAEBEGRZEHEE
- Unlisted equities —JE LTRRRE

RiERE
2022 2021
—E-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT
9,995 1,564

In January 2022, the Group has provided the remaining capital contribution
of RMB8,000,000 to Tiangong Biotechnology (Tianjin) Limited (K Z4E#)
B (K2) ARAF) (“Tiangong”). Tiangong has registered capital of
RMB100,000,000, of which 10% is held by the Group. The principal activities
of Tiangong are to carry out research and development of corn derivatives
and transfer its research outcomes to market. The Group has neither control
nor significant influence over Tiangong.

RIZEZZF—B > AEEERXIEY
B (KB BARAR (TRI)) RHEFERED
B AR 18,000,0007T c K T W 5= & 4
% AR #100,000,0007% » & H10%H 4
EERFB RINFTEBEKEZWE T KT
FERIFEMERRIERTIS AEE
HRITWEZEGREITESEATE o

2022 2021

—g-= —m-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AREFTT

At 1 January w—B—H 1,564 1,940

Purchases BE 8,000 -
Total unrealised gain/(loss) recognised R8N HERE 2 R EIR

in profit or loss s, (B518) 4858 431 (376)

At 31 December R+=-B=+—H 9,995 1,564
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aHPHERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-ZE__"F+_F=+—HILFE

19 Inventories 19 #E&

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%FT ARBFT

Raw materials B 613,025 414,496

Work in progress TS 21,059 19,169

Finished goods BUAY G 232,320 168,649

866,404 602,314
Inventories recognised as an expense during the year ended 31 December BE_Z__F+-B=+—HL#HF
2022 amounted to RMB10,555,375,000 (2021: RMB10,747,155,000). These E BISHAINEEZEAARSE
inventories were used for the production of finished goods and research 10,5655,375,00070 (ZE2Z—F ! AR
activities. 10,747,155,00070) ~ZEHFEANLEE

BURL S R I EE) 0
20 Trade and other receivables 20 EIKRHEMEWR

2022 2021

g ZET—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARBFT

Trade receivables 85 IR 145,594 147,249

Bank acceptance bills RITARERE 239,531 204,407

Prepayments and other tax receivables FE{T IR H A AE U R I8 195,490 235,078

Others Hih 8,935 7,623

589,550 594,357

104 CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are mainly denominated

in RMB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B EREMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H#Z_ZE__"F+_F=+—HIEFE

20

Trade and other receivables (Continued) 20

The movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables during the year is
as follows:

B 5 RHEMBEWR (&

FEEEZRRRNBREBEEHNOT :

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREBTT

At 1 January w—HB—H - 13,845
Amounts written off MitE %8 - (13,845)
At 31 December R+ZBE=+—H - -

The Group normally grants credit period ranging from 0 to 150 days (2021: 0
to 150 days) to customers.

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade receivables
based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance is as follows:

TEB-RAETFTELNEEHENTFESE
—BE+tH (B BE—FHAE+

H) e

RIREIFR > B BB HEERBHAR
HiREEREFHERIOREDTOT :

2022 2021
—EZZ B4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
0-30 days EE=4+H 134,162 136,162
31-60 days =+—zx+H 5,391 6,361
61-90 days A+—EA+H 1,022 2,927
Over 90 days N+HMUE 5,019 1,799
145,594 147,249

At the end of the reporting period, the bank acceptance bills consist of: R|RERFR BITEREBEIE
2022 2021
—E-C T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT
Bills on hand FHEERE 131,039 124,599
Endorsed bills HERRE 48,792 79,808
Discounted bills ARIRELR 59,700 -
239,531 204,407
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB ERERMNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-ZE__"F+_F=+—HILFE

20 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 20

The bank acceptance bills are normally with maturity period of 180 days
(2021: 180 days). There is no recent history of default on bank acceptance
bills.

As at 31 December 2022, bank acceptance bills of RMB7,530,000 and
discounted bills of RMB59,700,000 were pledged to banks for securing bills
payables and bank borrowing respectively. As at 31 December 2021, bank
acceptance bills of RMB8,428,000 were pledged to banks for securing bills
payables.

21 Pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and 21
other cash flow information

(a) Pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents

B7 REMBWR (&

RTARRE—RIPHRA—ENTH
(Z2Z—F: —BANTH) - RITAR
SRR IS8R

RIE-__H#+"B=+—H' AR
7,530,000t MIRTT R R RIER ARE
59,700,000 MY A IR BB B KR T #R17
DRAMER RN ZERERIBITERNIEE
RZE-_—H+"B=+—H' AR
8,428,000t WIRIT A R ZIR B IKIF F IR
170 EA RIS EIRIIEIR -

BIERRTER - RERREE
BEMREMRERER

(@) BHEFRTERRRERR

EEEBY
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AE®EF T
Pledged bank deposits BEIRRIRITER 207,582 -

Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY

— Cash at bank and on hand —IRITRFHEEE 1,002,985 1,000,977
Total “ast 1,210,567 1,000,977

Pledged bank deposits were provided to banks for securing banking
facilities and bills payables. The interest rate of the pledged bank
deposits was 1.9%.

As at 31 December 2022, deposits of RMB1,203,386,000 (2021:
RMB991,405,000) were placed with banks in the PRC. Remittance of
these funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

106 CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI AIRAT

EmERITIRMIEIRRTER  (F
BIVTEERENRROER
EIERIRTT BRI R 51.9%

R_B2__F+_A=+—8>
AR1,203,386,0007T (=&
Z—% : AR #991,405,0007T)
B TE R TL TE R P E AR T - 8
ZEEEBHPEABZRMF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AP ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H#Z_ZE__"F+_F=+—HIEFE

21 Pledged bank deposits cash and cash equivalents and 21

other cash flow information (Continuea)

(b)

Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated

ERARITER - RERREF
BEMREMBEEREN (@)

(b) FRIRETFEERGEEENR

from operations EHHIR
2022 2021
T F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARMEF T
Profit before income tax BRPr 1SR Al A 621,116 511,488
Adjustments for: WEEELTEE
Finance income BE WA (18,264) (8,054)
Finance expenses MEER 4,474 7,105
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥)% = &R HITE 273,929 248,296
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREESETE 10,875 10,954
Gain on disposals of property, plant and HEME -BERZEN
equipment & (9,403) (1,075)
Loss on written off of property, plant and WEEYE BB KRB
equipment 208 3,091
Amortisation of government grants AT i Bh R 8 (81,766) (62,925)
Fair value gain on derivative financial TEERTANAFERTZ
instruments - (341)
Fair value (gain)/loss on equity investments R ENATE WH) R (431) 376
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) on financing MEEFELEMNEREE,
activities (Y ) 1,416 (860)
Changes in working capital: HEETEE !
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =8 (gm b (264,090) 208,793
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 K H fh W RUR D 4,807 301,981
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 K ELfh FE AT FR D (20,091) (3,037)
Decrease in advances from customers BEEBIURLD (64,743) (61,613)
Cash generated from operations REEENRE 458,037 1,154,179
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB ERERMNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-ZE__"F+_F=+—HILFE

21  Pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and 21 BikRETEFR - REATREE

other cash flow information (Continued) EBEYMREMRERER &

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities (c) RMEZBFFEEEENEIR
The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as MEGTHAMELEBNHEERN
follows: T

Employee

Lease housing

Borrowings liabilities deposits
BIRE

R HEaR RiEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFRT ARBFRT ARBFR

At 1 January 2021 WZ-E=-—-%—H—H 126,849 1,100 23,741
Cash flows: RERE

Payment of lease liabilities HESENR - (662) -
Payment of interest on lease liabilities REABNEAR - (20) -
Proceeds of borrowings BRAER 306,334 - -
Repayment of borrowings BEG (321,147 - -
Other changes: Hith& g :

Interest on lease liabilities REAETE - 20 -
Exchange adjustments ERREEE (860) - -

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 H-ZE-—&+-B=+—Bk

—Z””"%—-HF-H 111,176 438 23,741
Cash flows: HERE ©
Payment of lease liabilities GE =L - (438) -
Payment of interest on lease liabilities HESENEAM - (4) -
Proceeds of borrowings BRER 309,188 - -
Repayment of borrowings BEE™N (135,855) - -
Increase in employee housing deposits ETREREBZIEM - - 123
Other changes: Hith g :
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFNE - 4 -
Exchange adjustments EREE 1,416 - -
At 31 December 2022 KoE-=#+-A=+-8 285,925 - 23,864
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B EREMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H#Z_ZE__"F+_F=+—HIEFE

21  Pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and 21 BiEHRETEF REAREE

other cash flow information (Continued) BYREMRESTRER &)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HERESRLEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases comprise the MEEFARERERNEEEN
following: T
2022 2021
—E-= S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTT
Within operating cash flows RBERERERN 990 690
Within investing cash flows RIEEREREN - 17,890
Within financing cash flows PREREREN 442 682
1,432 19,262
These amounts related to the following: ZESEUMUTEERRM !
2022 2021
St 2 B4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Purchase of right-of-use assets BETHAEEE - 17,890
Lease rentals paid BNHEERS 1,432 1,372
1,432 19,262
22  Share capital 22 gxE
2022 2021
Authorised: ERE -
Number of shares RmeE s
At 31 December 2022 and 2021 N_E__FERIZEZ—HF
+-_B=+—H 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
The number of authorised share capital of the Company is comprised of KRB HWEERAEB 6 1F
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.10 each. 10,000,000,0008% & i B {E0.1078 7oA &
B
2022 2021
- T4
Issued and fully paid: EETERERE
Number of shares v ¢=]
At 1 January and 31 December n—A—Br+ZA=+—H 5,994,132,043 5,994,132,043
Equivalent nominal value of ordinary shares LEREREE (ARETT)
(RMB’000) 532,500 532,500
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aHPHERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-ZE__"F+_F=+—HILFE

23  Deferred taxation 23 IRERIA
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (a) EREINELEREEERE
&
The components and movement of net deferred tax assets are as FEIETR B E R E AR AR BB 1D A
follows: ZEMT -
Depreciation
Impairment allowances PRC
of property, in excess of dividend
plant and Government the related withholding
equipment grants depreciation tax Total
Eﬁﬁﬁ
LENES ?ﬁéﬂ‘] FEKS
RfERE B IERE SEHIE EH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARBTR AREBFR AREBTR NG
Deferred tax arising from: REUTEENRLERE
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—E-F-H 1907 62,323 (51,311) (7,000) 5,919
Charged to profit or loss (note 12)  F18& M (HaE12) (70) (13,253) (5,243) (7,000) (25,566)
At 31 December 2021 and S =
1 January 2022 “+-HERIZZZE
—FB—H 1,837 49,070 (56,554) (14,000 (19,647)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 12183 (tA) /1%
(note 12) (HiE12) 747 10,345 (225) (2,631) 8,236
At 31 December 2022 A
+ZA=+-8 2,584 59,415 (56,779) (16,631) (11,411)

The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated

BB IR R A FE ST BY IR AE

statement of financial position is as follows: mESE, (BB WTF:
2022 2021
- TET—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBFT
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 61,999 50,907
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE (73,410) (70,554)
(11,411) (19,647)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the PRC dividend withholding
tax relating to certain undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries were not recognised as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries. Based on the assessment
made by the management as at the end of the reporting period, it
was determined that the undistributed profits of RMB2,166,000,000
(2021: RMB1,547,399,000) of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries

would not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

11() CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(b) RERHRERIEER

R A A B S E R E M B A E
B9 BE BEER o MR S B B 52 S Y
BABE TR IKA EAEREN
FERREFENRERIELERIEA
BEC-REBEEEBRRS AR
EHBT G R AR AT HE
WEBABNKRDIKABEARE
2,166,000,0007c (ZZ = —4F: A
R #1,547,399,0007T) A& BJ
BHERIEED IR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B EREMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H#Z_ZE__"F+_F=+—HIEFE

24 Lease liabilities 24 FHE&SE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s TRIITAEBHEGENRSBARDY
lease liabilities at the end of the reporting period. FIERSASIHAH ©
2022 2021
—E-C B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREF T
Lease liabilities HEaR - 438
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or loss RERNFEDSEERMANEZIER 2
is as follows: WU
2022 2021
—E-= —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) HEaENE (fisEs) 4 20
Expense relating to short-term leases BRI EMNRX 976 679
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets FRREEEERAENHX 14 1
25 Borrowings 25 A&
The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows: NEBBGRN T HAREE -
(a) By year of repayment (a) IHERERISD
2022 2021
—E- -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFIT
Bank borrowings IRITER
- Within one year —— &R 259,700 100,000
Other borrowings HihE™®R
— Within one year ——&FR 26,225 8,176
- Between one and two years ——EMF - 3,000
285,925 111,176
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-ZE__"F+_F=+—HILFE

25 Borrowings (Continued) 25

(b) By secured and unsecured borrowings

&R (&

(b) REERREEBERES

2022 2021

—EF B4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F ARBFT

Secured BigE 259,700 -
Unsecured i i 26,225 111,176
285,925 111,176

As at 31 December 2022, the loan of RMB3,000,000 (2021: RMB3,000,000)
(denominated in RMB) was provided by Weifang Financial Holding Group
Limited, a state-owned enterprise, and bore a fixed interest rate of 3% per
annum. The loan of RMB23,225,000 (2021: RMB8,176,000) (denominated
in HK$) was provided by Merry Boom Group Limited (the “Merry Boom”), a
controlling shareholder of the Company, and bore a one-month Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate.

The effective interest rates of bank borrowings at the end of reporting period
were as follows:

Bank borrowings IRITE™M
- Secured —HigH
- Unsecured — g

N_E - _F+-_A=+—H' AR
13,000,000 0 (ZEZ—F : AR
8,000,0007t) WEM UARHSHE) B
BEGCEARTESRERERETRA
SRE REEEMNEIRE AR
103,225,000 (ZE-—F : AR#
8,176,0007t) WE™M (U ETsHE) HIE
BEBBERAT (MEHE])) KABEKE
B) R #—ERZEERITAXERE

TR

RIREARBBITERERFIRNT

2022 2021
—E_CE B

1.15%-2.2% -
- 3.65% - 4.3%
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H#Z_ZE__"F+_F=+—HIEFE

26

27

Deferred income 26 REWA
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREBTT
At 1 January W—B—H 259,411 303,043
Additions for the year FREEM 67,077 19,293
Amortisation for the year (note 6) FEE#HE (sk6) (81,766) (62,925)
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 244,722 259,411
Deferred income mainly represents government grants or subsidies received FEWAFBIEMRERGELEEEMK
for the development of the production complex and storage facilities as well 75 (5 5% 56 A K A 9T 18 B M BAS B9 BUT 48
as research projects. Bhak s o
Trade and other payables 27 EBIKRHEMEMR
2022 2021
T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Trade payables B EE™m 188,973 187,347
Bills payables NS 7,530 8,428
Total trade and bills payables BN R IEAEEE 196,503 195,775
Payable for construction and equipment BEKRZERMR 64,653 91,715
Payroll and welfare payables A TE K@ 33,843 25,652
Accrued expenses FESTRE S 31,949 53,300
Tender deposits KIZREBE 19,636 22,504
Other tax payables HihELRIE 12,464 18,072
Sales commission HERME 3,140 3,364
Others Hith 6,961 5,920
369,149 416,302

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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27

28

29

]14 CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Trade and other payables (Continued) 27 EBIZREMEMNR E
As at 31 December 2022, bills payables are secured by bank acceptance bills RIZEZZHF+ZA=+—H EFE
of RMB7,530,000 (2021: RMBS8,428,000) (note 20). LA R#7,530,0007C (T B = —4 ¢
RMB8,428,0007t) HIRIT A R i (I sE
20) fEHEIF o
The following is the ageing analysis for the trade and bills payables based on UM RBRERREZ A RRENER
invoice date at the end of the reporting period: RIREE ZE H ARV EREC D AT !
2022 2021
g B —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AREFT
0-60 days TEA+H 163,355 117,635
61-90 days At+—EA+H 2,558 08,764
Over 90 days h+BMUE 30,590 49,376
196,503 195,775
The average credit period on purchases is 80 days (2021: 80 days). The KRBT EEHAS0R (CE—£F .
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all 80RH) - AEEEH EMB R E R
payables are paid within the credit time frame. FoOUBRAMBEMNRNEREEHNE
CEANE
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are mainly denominated in BEREMEMHRNEREEFEUAR
RMB. HESHE o
Advances from customers 28 FEPRB®M
Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2022 that was REE_Z__F+_B=+—HLH
included in advances from customers at the beginning of the year was EStABZRBRANBEIRGENFIH
RMB268,866,000 (2021: RMB329,665,000). AE 268,866,000 (ZEZ—F : AR
#£329,665,0007T) ©
Employee housing deposits 29 BIEEMRES

Employee housing deposits are carried at amortised cost.

The Group offers residential accommodation to the staff with the aim of
promoting long service with the Group. Staff are required to place housing
deposits to the Group for the use of such accommodation. The employee
housing deposits are interest-free, unsecured and repayable upon the return
of the staff quarters by the employee or termination of employment.

RENBRMIERAIRAR

ETERERETIZHBEMAIIR

FEEDSTREER SECE TR
RERBAEH ETHEAAMERRE
ARFEEBNERERES - BETEER
BEDHRE BEARNEIRCEIHE
SWRILEFHRRE -
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30

31

32

Commitments 30 KiE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but not REAFEGERFEITNEREREEE
recognised as liabilities is as follows: HNERERBEZNT :
2022 2021
—E-C B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREBTT
Capital contribution H&E 71,430 78,000
Property, plant and equipment ME- BB NEE 132,814 32,771
Share-based payment transactions 31 URMZEARENRS
The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was KRR ZE—tFERB+ N EHRMNE
adopted on 19 May 2017 for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards REHESTE (TRERESE)) " BENAEE
to directors, employees and other eligible persons. The Share Option Scheme E-BEERHEMEER A TR BEISE
will remain in force for a period of ten years commencing on the date on B o FERGREST IR I B AC RE S B iR 2 B
which the Share Option Scheme is adopted. The maximum number of shares BT+ FEARNBXM - BITEIREEREST
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted T 722 B R 47 BY A fa] EL Ath S G 7 51 81 B9
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share FrE BB RITHERRET A
option scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% THRMNEE LR &HFBBIBEARQT
of the issued capital of the Company from time to time. AEFE TR ABI30% ©
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, no options have been granted under the RZE_ZERZZE-_—F+2A8
Share Option Scheme. =+—H> BEREERETER BT
RERG i o
Related party transactions 32 [MEAXRS

Save for the disclosure in note 25, the related party transactions including
remuneration for key management personnel of the Group are as follows:

FRICPHISE26PIINEE SN AR EE
BEEEBASHFMOBESRIZMT :

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREF T

Short-term benefits ZHiEH 1,750 1,750
Pension scheme contributions BRI 115 170
1,865 1,920

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

—z-—zag []§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB ERERMNEE
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33 Statement of financial position of the Company 33 ERAFMBBIKAR
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RTBRATNKE 159,378 159,378
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N EN=IE 8= 518,097 504,313
Prepayments AR 383 383
Cash and cash equivalents ReERIREEEY 6,198 9,171
524,678 513,867
Total assets BEEHEE 684,056 673,245
EQUITY ey
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZxAT#HE AE(L#ERE
Share capital [IZiN 532,500 532,500
Reserves (note) fEE (5D 128,331 132,569
Total equity RER4a%EE 660,831 665,069
LIABILITY =R E
Current and total liability B REEETE
Borrowings EEN 23,225 8,176
Total equity and liability kA REE 684,056 673,245
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33

34

Statement of financial position of the Company 33 ZFRAFMBBRAR &
(Continued)
Note  Movement of the reserves of the Company k=3 piN/NGIL= 1)
Special Capital Retained
reserve reserve profit Total
F R BXHEE REFE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFT ANREFTT ANREFT ANREFT
At 1 January 2021 WZEZ—-F—F—H 108,651 16,730 5,971 131,352
Profit for the year REEF - - 46,158 46,158
2020 final dividend “ETERBRE - - (44,941) (44,941)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 W_Z-_—F£+_"_F=+—HK
B "F#—A—H 108,651 16,730 7,188 132,569
Profit for the year KEEFH - - 30,644 30,644
2021 final dividend CECERBRE - - (34,882) (34,882)
At 31 December 2022 RIZZZHF+ZHB=+—H 108,651 16,730 2,950 128,331
Event after the reporting period 34 HEHESEIE

In December 2022, the Group has entered into an equity transfer agreement
with a seller for the acquisition of registered capital of RMB6,000,000,
representing 2% of the paid-up registered capital, in Shandong Juneng
Thermal Power Development Company Limited (LLEEEfEREZXEFRA
&) (“Juneng Thermal Power”) for a consideration of RMB11,280,000. Juneng
Thermal Power is engaged into the generation, transmission and supply of
electricity and heat. Juneng Thermal Power is a supplier of electricity and
steam to the production facilities of the Group in Shouguang. The seller is an
independent third party not connected with the Group or a connected person
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company. The transfer of equity
interest in Juneng Thermal Power and the payment of the consideration is
completed on 9 January 2023.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Five-Year Financial Summary

L FEMBHEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

“E-- ZEZ-% ZBEIEE TZE-hE IZE-N\%F

Operating results e
(RMB’000) N -S|
Revenue WA 11,948,852 11,639,315 8,892,261 6,750,401 5,073,489
Gross profit EH 1,190,475 952,211 559,775 353,004 443,164
Operating profits &R 607,326 510,539 261,500 105,392 271,232
Profit for the year REEFE 495,432 402,830 207,039 98,096 238,035
Profit attributable to shareholders BREayilbe 352,009 345,597 190,120 96,847 230,897
Assets and Liabilities BERERE
(RMB’000) (N5 o)

Total assets waE 5,105,848 4,719,159 4,567,492 4,424,974 4,212,055
Total liabilities maE 1,284,065 1,227,137 1,433,359 1,463,827 1,285,712
Non-controlling interests P 226,693 214,059 156,826 139,907 138,658
Shareholder’s equity R 3,595,090 3,277,963 2,977,307 2,821,240 2,787,685
Per share data sk
Net assets per share (RMB) SRIEE ARED) 0.64 0.58 0.52 0.49 0.49
Earnings per share (RMB cents) SREN ARED) 5.87 5.77 3.17 1.62 3.85
Dividends per share (HK$ cents) SREE GBI 0.69 0.69 0.90 0.62 1.20
Dividend payout ratio RELLE 10.5% 9.8% 23.9% 34.3% 27.3%
Share price as at the year ended (HK$) FREE (B 0.225 0.212 0.156 0.143 0.169
Note: st

The above summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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